
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of  

the Audit Committee 

on Thursday, 23 September 2021, at 6.30 p.m. 

in the Lowther Room, Kendal Town Hall 

 
 
 
 

Committee Membership 
 

Councillors 
 

Giles Archibald 

Stephen Coleman (Chairman) 

Tracy Coward (Vice-Chairman) 

Kevin Holmes 

Kevin Lancaster 

Matt Severn 

 

 
 
Note – Where relevant, agendas for Members are labelled “Private Document Pack” and 
contain exempt information within the papers. Any relevant pages are marked as restricted 
within Agendas labelled “Public Document Pack”. 
 
 
Wednesday, 15 September 2021 
 
Linda Fisher, Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
 
For all enquiries, please contact:-  

Committee Administrator: Inge Booth 

 

Telephone: 01539 793190 

e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Please note that this meeting will be preceded at 6.00 p.m. by an informal meeting of the 
Committee with representatives from both External and Internal Audit, without the 
presence of officers, also in the Lowther Room. 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

2  MINUTES  5 - 10 

 To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting of the Committee held on 29 July 2021. 

 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this 
Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 
 
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as 
any other registrable or other interests. 
 
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of 
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised 
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

4  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public. 

 

5  AUDIT COMMITTEE 2021/22 WORK PROGRAMME (SEPTEMBER 2021)  11 - 14 

 To consider progress against the Committee’s 2021/22 Work Programme.  

6  INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2021/22 (SEPTEMBER 2021)  15 - 66 

 To consider a summary of progress in completing the Internal Audit Annual Plan 
in 2021/22, including three final Internal Audit reports and an update on 
progress achieved in implementing recommendations from previous Internal 
Audit reviews. 

 

7  AUDITED STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS AND ANNUAL GOVERNANCE 
STATEMENT 2020/21  

67 - 86 

 To consider and authorise the signing of the Statement of Accounts 2020/21 
and the Letter of Representation following the external audit and to note the 
Annual Governance Statement Action Plan (Appendices 2, 4 and 5 to follow). 

 

8  EXTERNAL AUDIT OPINION ON ACCOUNTS - AUDIT FINDINGS REPORT   

 To consider the Audit Findings Report for the year ended 31 March 2021 issued 
by Grant Thornton (report to follow). 

 



9  EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT AND UPDATE (SEPTEMBER 
2021)  

 

 To consider a summary of the External Auditor’s progress to date and emerging 
issues and developments that may be relevant to the Council (report to follow). 

 

10  OTHER SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL ISSUES   

 To receive a verbal update from the Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 
Officer) on any other significant financial issues. 

 

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number) 

There are no items in this Part of the Agenda. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
29.07.2021 Audit Committee 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Audit Committee held in the Assembly 
Room, Kendal Town Hall, Kendal, on Thursday, 29 July 2021, at 6.30 p.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

 Stephen Coleman (Chairman) 
Tracy Coward (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Giles Archibald 

 
Kevin Holmes 

 
Kevin Lancaster 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Matt Severn. 
 

Officers 
 

John Davies Case Management Officer 

Linda Fisher Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) 

Adam Moffatt Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist 

Claire Read Finance Specialist 

Helen Smith Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) 

David Sykes Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources 

 
Also in attendance were Jane Butterfield (Internal Audit) and Gareth Kelly (External Audit 
Manager). 
 

AUD/1 MINUTES  
 
The Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) informed Members that the Working 
Group to review the annual governance statement, which had been discussed at the last 
meeting of the Audit Committee, had not been set up. She explained that the documents 
that were to be discussed, had fed into the appendices to the Statement of Accounts and 
Annual Governance Statement 2020/21 Report (at Minute No. AUD/10). She informed 
Members that if the Committee wished, the working group could be set up to discuss the 
documents in more detail. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the minutes 
of the meeting of the Committee held on 22 April 2021. 
 

AUD/2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that Councillor Giles Archibald declared a non-pecuniary 
interest in Minute No. AUD/59 (Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement 
2020/21) by virtue of the fact that he is a shareholder in the parent company of Mercer, he 
remained in the room during voting and discussion on the item. 
 

AUD/3 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
There were no excluded items on the agenda. 
 

Page 5

Item No.2



2 
29.07.2021 Audit Committee 
 

AUD/4 TERMS OF REFERENCE  
 
Members raised a query regarding the Membership section of the Terms of Reference 
which had not been updated since the changes to the Membership of the Audit 
Committee. The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) 
undertook to make the correction to the Terms of Reference. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Terms of Reference for the Audit Committee be noted. 
 

AUD/5 AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22  
 
The Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) introduced the Audit Committee 
2021/22 Work Programme and informed Members that the current version had been 
updated to reflect Lead Officers and to include dates of forthcoming Committee Meetings. 
She highlighted that reports relating to Anti-Fraud and the Audit Committee Risk Register 
had been delayed until September 2021. 
 
Members raised concern over the impact of LGR on the Authority and requested that 
Local Government Reorganisation have a fixed item on the agenda for the committee to 
be provided any relevant updates. 
 
RESOLVED – That the progress against the 2021/22 Work Programme be noted. 
 

AUD/6 RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE  
 
The Case Management Officer (Support Services) presented the latest Strategic Risk 
Register. The Register contained all those risks above and below the line of risk tolerance. 
He explained that all risks above the line of tolerance had mitigations listed and the 
mitigations were designed to reduce the risk in terms of likelihood or impact or both and to 
reduce the risk from the current position on the matric to the target position. 
 
The Case Management Officer (Support Services) informed Members that there were 16 
risks listed at Appendix 1 to the report and he highlighted the six risks which were above 
the line of appetite. He went on to explain that a risk should reach its target positon by the 
target date and for a risk to be managed on schedule the mitigations must be 
implemented by their due dates. He added that 38% of risks were above appetite, which 
had seen a sharp reduction of risks positioned above appetite and highlighted that any 
risks in this position would be reviewed at least once per quarter. 
 
Following a request from Members, the Director of Strategy and Innovation confirmed that 
a risk related to Local Government Reorganisation had been drafted that would be added 
to the risk register, following preliminary meetings that would provide more clarity on the 
next steps for the Authority. 
 
Further discussion raised interest in the changing status of a number of risks that had 
been reduced and whether this reduction had been down to the active steps taken or the 
risks being perceived as high. 
 
Concern was raised over the placement of two risks, the first related to the impact of the 
Welfare Reform on communities and the impact of new projects and initiatives on existing 
Council Plan priorities. The Director of Strategy and Innovation undertook to redraft risk 5 
in appendix 1 to the report (Impact of the Welfare Reform on communities). The Case 
Management Officer (Support Services) agreed to provide a written response to update 
Members on the position of risk 5 and risk 13. 

Page 6



3 
29.07.2021 Audit Committee 
 
 
In response to a question on the impact of Local Government Reorganisation on Business 
as Usual and the potential for limitations on spending, the Director of Strategy, Innovation 
and Resources informed Members that some restriction could be forthcoming, it was likely 
that this would not apply to projects that had been included in the approved budget of the 
Council. He added that more information would come out as the process moves forwards 
and following a request from the Chairman, agreed to provide a written update on any 
progress on this matter. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Strategic Risk Register, as at Appendix 1 to the report, be noted. 
 

AUD/7 INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21  
 
The Internal Audit Manager introduced the Internal Audit Progress Report 2020/21. 
Appendix 1 provided a summary of the progress against the Internal Audit Annual Plan as 
at July 2021. She explained that, in terms of internal audit delivery, the work for 2020/21 
had been significantly delayed by the Covid-19 pandemic but had largely been completed 
by the end of April 2021. She added that the annual opinion from internal audit had 
concluded that reasonable assurance over the systems of governance, risk management 
and internal control. 
 
Members expressed their gratitude to Officers for the improvements shown in the report 
and asked for their thanks to be passed on. 
 
RESOLVED – That:- 
 
(1) the Head of Internal Audit’s opinion of reasonable assurance on the Council’s overall 

systems of governance, risk management and internal control for the year ended 31 
March 2021 be noted; 
 

(2) the progress achieved in 2020/21 in delivering the Audit Plan and the outcomes of 
completed audit reviews set out in Appendix 1 be noted; 
 

(3) the Head of Internal Audit’s declaration of Internal Audit independence as required by 
the mandatory PSIAS be noted; and 
 

(4) the Head of Internal Audit’s declaration of conformance with the mandatory PSIAS be 
noted. 

 

AUD/8 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2021/22  
 
The Internal Audit Manager introduced the Internal Audit Progress Report 2021/22. 
Appendix 1 of the report provided a summary of the progress achieved in completing the 
Internal Audit Plan as at July 2021. Members were informed that at this stage in the year, 
no 2021/22 internal audit reports had been finalised, although fieldwork was underway on 
four reviews. It was highlighted that Appendix 2 to the report contained the executive 
summaries of the two audit reports completed in the period: Corporate Governance 
(Compliance with the Local Code) and Asset Management.  
 
Members gave consideration to the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the access to 
information for Internal Audit, the recommendations that came as a result of the 
Assurance Reviews set out in the Appendices to the report. 
 

Page 7



4 
29.07.2021 Audit Committee 
 
Further discussion raised concern over severe risks that were outstanding, to which the 
Internal Audit Manager responded and informed Members that there was only one, priority 
one risk outstanding, but there had been no major risk as a result of this as the completion 
date had not yet been met. In addition, the Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) 
informed Members that the reports would be brought back to the next meeting of the Audit 
Committee and highlighted officer training which covered the role of internal audit and 
reinforced the need for recommendations to be followed up.  
 
RESOLVED – That the following be noted:- 
 
(1) the progress achieved in 2020/21 and 2021/22 in completing the Audit Plan and the 

outcomes of completed audit reviews set out in Appendix 1; 
 

(2) the attached audit reports at Appendix 2; and 
 

(3) the summary progress achieved in implementing the recommendations from previous 
internal audit reviews set out in Appendix 3. 

 

AUD/9 EXTERNAL AUDIT DRAFT SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL AUDIT PLAN 
YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2021  
 
The External Audit Manager presented the External Audit Draft Plan for the Council for the 
year ended 31 March 2021. The Plan set out an overview of the planned scope and timing 
of the statutory audit of the Council for those charged with governance. 
 
The document aimed to assist the Committee in understanding the consequences of 
External Audit’s work, discuss issues of risk and the concept of materiality and identify 
those areas of work External Audit would undertake during the year. 
 
In presenting the report, the External Audit Manager referred to the revised approach to 
Value for Money, before moving on to the significant risks, particularly that of Covid-19 
and implications on financial reporting and accounting. He felt that the pandemic would 
have a significant impact on the Council’s resources, in terms of increased expenditure 
and especially lost income. He specifically mentioned the risk attached to fraud in revenue 
recognition, highlighting that some elements of the risk had been rebutted and stated that 
overall; South Lakeland District Council is low risk. In concluding his report, the External 
Audit Manager informed Members of a high level commentary on Local Government 
Reorganisation during 2021/22 with the aim of reporting back to the Audit Committee later 
in the year. 
 
No Member having raised concern when asked by the Chairman, it was 
 
RESOLVED – That the External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council year ended 
31 March 2021 be noted. 
 

AUD/10 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS AND ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2020/21  
 
The Finance Specialist (Deputy Section 151 Officer) introduced the draft Statement of 
Accounts and Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021. The unaudited statements had 
been approved by the Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) on 18 June 2021 and 
had been opened up to scrutiny and comment from the public on the 21 June 2021. The 
2020/21 accounts must be approved by Members and published no later than 30 
September 2021, or as soon as reasonably practicable after the receipt of the auditors 
final report (it later than 30 September). 

Page 8



5 
29.07.2021 Audit Committee 
 
 
The Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) explained that the Annual Governance 
Statement had been published in the same document as the Statement of Accounts, 
providing important context to the financial information and having been signed by the 
Chief Executive and the Leader of the Council. She added that the Annual General 
Statement had been expanded for 2020/21 to include a summary of changes in 
governance arrangements as a result of Covid-19, the majority of which were included in 
the Covid-19 update to Audit Committee in September 2020. 
 
The Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) informed Members that a robust review 
of the Governance Statement had taken place, which updated the action plan 
substantially in line with the new CIPFA Financial Management Code which needed to be 
implemented this year. 
 
Members expressed their thanks to officers for the work done by officers for the crucial 
work done throughout the Covid-19 pandemic and raised a query related to the risks 
associated with the Covid-19 grants. The Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) 
informed Members that there had been a risk due to the nature of the grants, but that the 
Finance Team was happy that any risk had been mitigated as far as possible, providing a 
clear audit trail through the ‘My Account’ system. 
 
RESOLVED – That:- 
 
(1) The unaudited Statement of Accounts for 2020/21 (including the Annual Governance 

Statement and the Annual Governance Statement Action Plan be noted; and  
 

(2) The management response to the auditor risk assessment set out in Appendices 3 
and 4 be confirmed as a true reflection of the Council’s management processes. 

 

AUD/11 OTHER SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL ISSUES  
 
The Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) highlighted that the government had 
looked at the responses to the Redmond Review and explained that the consultation 
period was to end on 28 September 2021. She proposed that she would prepare a draft 
response to the consultation which would be circulated to members before sending and 
then attached to the next Audit Committee Agenda for noting. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 7.28 p.m. 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



23/09/2021 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2021/22 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 1 of 4 

 Lead Officer 29 July 2021 23 Sept 2021 18 Nov 2021 21 April 2022 

Committee Administration  

Committee Terms of Reference Inge Booth √    

Set work programme for coming year Helen Smith    √ 

Review progress against work programme  Helen Smith √ √ √ √ 

Training – to be arranged as necessary 
outside meetings  

Helen Smith As needed As needed As needed As needed 

Chair’s Audit Committee Annual Report:  Helen Smith/Chair    
√ (referral to 

Council):  

Private Meeting – Internal and External Audit Inge Booth  √   

External Audit 

Annual Audit Letter Gareth Kelly   √ (2020/21)  

Grant Certification Report (Housing Benefits) Gareth Kelly   √ (2020/21)  

Opinion Audit Plan Gareth Kelly √ (2020/21)    

Audit Fee Letter  Gareth Kelly √ (2020/21)    

External Auditor Update Gareth Kelly √ √ √ √ 

P
age 11

Item
 N

o.5



23/09/2021 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2021/22 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 2 of 4 

 

 Lead Officer July 2021 Sept 2021 Dec 2021   April 2022 

Internal Audit      

Internal Audit Annual Plan  (including review 
of Internal Audit Charter) 

Peter Harrison    2022/23 √ 

Annual Internal Audit Report Peter Harrison 2020/21√   2021/22 √ 

2020/21 Internal Audit Plan Progress, 
Individual Internal Audit Reports and 
Recommendation Follow Up Report 

Peter Harrison √ √ √ √ 

Review effectiveness of Internal Audit Helen Smith   √  

Accounts 

Approve the 2020/21 draft Statement of 
Accounts 

Helen Smith √    

Approve the 2020/21 Statement of Accounts, 
Annual Governance Statement and Action 
Plan 

Sign letter of representation 

Helen Smith  
√ (update 
report to 
follow) 

  

2020/21 Statement of Accounts - Receive 
external auditor’s opinion on Accounts (Audit 
Findings Report & Financial Resilience 
Report) 

Gareth Kelly  
√ (report to 

follow) 
  

Review Accounting Policies for 2021/22 
Statement of Accounts 

Helen Smith   √   

P
age 12



23/09/2021 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2021/22 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 3 of 4 

 Lead Officer July 2021 Sept 2021 Dec 2021   April 2022 

Regulatory Framework      

Review Annual Governance Statement for 
inclusion in the Statement of Accounts Report 

Helen Smith 
Arrange sub-

group  
   

Contribute to review of Constitution Helen Smith   √  

Annual Review of Anti-Fraud Policy & Activity Helen Smith 
Delay to Sept 

2021 
√ √  

Review Whistleblowing Policy (Bi-annual) Helen Smith  √ √  

Review of Performance and Risk 
Management Framework 

Simon McVey    √ 

Review of Operational Risks above the line of 
risk tolerance  

Simon McVey 
 

  √ 

Audit Committee Risk Register Helen Smith 
Delay to Sept 

2021 
√ √  

Strategic Risk Register Simon McVey √  √  

Review Local Code of Governance   
Helen Smith/Linda 

Fisher 
  √  

Review Audit Committee’s effectiveness Helen Smith   √  

P
age 13



23/09/2021 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2021/22 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 4 of 4 

 

Financial Issues 

Customer Connect Business Case & Updates Simon McVey  Final Report Final Report  

Update of significant financial issues not 
covered elsewhere on the agenda 

Helen Smith As required 

 

P
age 14



South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

Thursday, 23 September 2021 

Internal Audit Progress Report 2021/22  
 

 

Portfolio:   Not applicable 

Report from:  Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) 

Report Author: Peter Harrison – Internal Audit Manager (Regional Managing Director, 
TIAA Limited) 

Wards: Corporate Issue 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 This report provides a summary of the progress in delivering the Internal Audit Annual 
Plan in 2021/22. It provides the Committee with assurance through the individual 
internal audit reports for work carried out to date. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 Members of the Audit Committee are asked to note: 

 The progress achieved in 2020/21 and 2021/22 in completing the Audit Plan and 
the outcomes of completed audit reviews set out in Appendix 1. 

 The attached audit reports at Appendix 2. 

 Summary progress achieved in implementing recommendations from previous 
internal audit reviews set out in Appendix 3. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 All local authorities must make proper provision for internal audit in line with the 1972 
Local Government Act. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that the 
Council undertakes an effective Internal Audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk 
management, internal control and governance processes, taking into account the 
Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards (PSIAS). 

3.2 Internal Audit is responsible for providing independent assurance to the Council’s 
senior management and to the Audit Committee on the systems of governance, risk 
management and internal control. 

3.3 It is management’s responsibility to establish and maintain internal control systems 
and to ensure that resources are properly applied, risks appropriately managed and 
that outcomes are achieved. Management is responsible for the system of internal 
control and should set in place policies and procedures to ensure that controls are 
operating effectively. 

4.0 Progress against the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan 

Page 15

Item No.6



4.1   The Internal Audit Plan was approved by the Committee in April 2021.  

4.2 The progress report at Appendix 1 provides the Committee with a summary of the 
position as at September 2021. 

4.3 At this stage, three 2021/22 internal audit reports have been finalised, with fieldwork 
underway on a further three reviews.  

5.0 Audit reports completed in the period 

5.1 Appendix 2 contains the executive summaries of the three audits completed in the 
period: 

 Contract Management; 

 Procurement; and 

 Debtors.   

6.0 Follow up of internal audit recommendations 

6.1 The latest summary position relating to the implementation of outstanding 
recommendations is set out in Appendix 3.   

7.0 Alternative Options 

7.1 There are no alternative options; the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that 
the Council undertakes an effective Internal Audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its 
risk management, internal control and governance processes, taking into account the 
Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards (PSIAS). 

8.0 Links to Council Priorities 

8.1 Internal Audit provides independent assurance on the Council’s arrangements for 
governance, risk management and internal control in support of delivery of the 
Council’s strategic priorities. 

9.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

9.1 There are no direct financial implications to this report.  

Human Resources 

9.2 There are no direct staffing implications arising from this report. 

Legal 

9.3 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

9.4 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? No      

9.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: this 
report relates to a review of corporate governance and is considered to have no Health, 
Social, Economic and Environmental impacts. 

Equality and Diversity 

9.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No      

9.8 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: this 
report relates to a review of corporate governance and is considered to have no 
Equality and Diversity impacts. 

Page 16



Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

The Council does not comply 
with legislative requirements as 
laid out under the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations 2015. 

The Council does not 
receive adequate 
assurance over the internal 
control environment.   

Regular progress reporting 
to senior management and 
Audit Committee each 
quarter. 

Contact Officer 

Peter Harrison, Director, TIAA Limited. 

07970 376542 

peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Internal Audit Progress Report 

2 Audit Report – Executive Summaries 

2a. Contract Management 

2b. Procurement 

2c. Debtors 

3 Summary Follow Up position 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Not applicable Not Applicable 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services N/A 

Section 151 Officer 08/09/2021 

Monitoring Officer N/A 

SMT N/A 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Finance Lead Specialist 08/09/2021 

Human Resources Manager N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee 23/09/2021 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



 

 
 

 
 

Internal Audit 
 

September 2021 

 

 

 
 

APPENDIX 1 

 

 

 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

 Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) Report  

 2021/22 

FINAL 

P
age 19



 

 

 

 
 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) Report 

 

 

Page 1 
 

Summary Internal Controls Assurance 

Introduction 

1. This summary report provides the Audit Committee with an update on the emerging Governance, Risk and Internal Control related issues and the progress of our work at South 

Lakeland District Council as at 6th September 2021.  

Emerging Governance, Risk and Internal Control Related Issues 

2. With the easing of restrictions come the decisions by many businesses as to how they are going to operate in a post-lockdown world. There is a balance between the creativity 

and collaboration that arises from being in the same workplace and the benefits that arise from remote working and embracing of technology. Our approach is largely driven by 

how our clients are going to operate so we decided to ask their thoughts as part of our annual client survey. The majority of respondents said that they would prefer a mixture of 

virtual/remote and face-to-face provision of assurance services in the future. This is largely what we expected, although we recognise that is likely to vary between sectors. 

3. Whichever model is adopted, we will continue to consider the impact on Governance, Risk and Internal Control of any changes to working practices. 

How our clients would like their organisation’s assurance services provided  

P
age 20



 

 

 

 
 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) Report 

 

 

Page 2 
 

Audits completed since the last SICA report to the Audit Committee 

4. The table below sets out details of audits finalised since the previous meeting of the Audit Committee. 

Audits completed since previous SICA report 

  Key Dates Number of Recommendations 

Review Evaluation Draft issued Responses Received Final issued 1 2 3 OEM 

Contract Management Reasonable 20/08/2021 24/08/2021 25/08/2021 - 2 - - 

Procurement Reasonable 09/08/2021 01/09/2021 02/09/2021 - 4 1 - 

Debtors Substantial 10/08/2021 07/09/2021 07/09/2021 - - 1 - 

5. There are no issues arising from these findings which would require the annual Head of Audit Opinion to be qualified. 

Progress against the 2021/22 Annual Plan 

6. Our progress against the Annual Plan for 2021/22 is set out in Appendix A. 

Changes to the Annual Plan 2021/22 

7. There are no changes proposed to the Annual Plan at this time.  

Progress in actioning priority 1 recommendations 

8. We have made no Priority 1 recommendations (i.e. fundamental control issue on which action should be taken immediately) since the previous SICA.  

Frauds/Irregularities 

9. We have not been advised of any frauds or irregularities in the period since the last SICA report was issued. 

Other Matters 

10. We have issued a number of briefing notes and fraud digests, shown in Appendix B, since the previous SICA report.  

Responsibility/Disclaimer 

11. This report has been prepared solely for management's use and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. The matters 

raised in this report not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. No responsibility to any third party 

is accepted as the report has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive 

this report and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

--------------- 

 

P
age 21



 

 

 
 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) Report 

 

 

Page 3 
 

Appendix A 

Progress against Annual Plan 

System 
Planned 

Quarter 
Current Status Comments Audit Committee 

Flood Relief Scheme 1 tbc Likely to be quarter 3 due to staff availability. April 2022 

Cyber Maturity 1 Fieldwork in Progress  December 2021 

Contract Management 1 Complete Final Report Issued September 2021 

Licensing – Taxis 1 Planned Start Date 28th September 2021  December 2021 

Procurement 2 Complete Final Report Issued September 2021 

Customer Connect – My Account 2 Fieldwork in Progress  December 2021 

Information Governance 2 Planned Start Date 20th September 2021  December 2021 

Debtors 2 Complete Final Report Issued September 2021 

Covid-19 Grant Schemes 2 Fieldwork in Progress  December 2021 

Budgetary Control 3 Planned Start Date 22nd November 2021  April 2022 

Treasury Management 3 Planned Start Date 26th October 2021  December 2021 

Administration of Grants 3 tbc  tbc 

Housing Benefits 4 Planned Start Date 4th January 2022  April 2022 

Follow Up 1 - 4 Ongoing Next report to September Committee. All 

KEY: 

 

 To be commenced   Site work commenced   Draft report issued   Final report issued 

P
age 22



 

 

 
 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) Report 

 

 

Page 4 
 

Appendix B 

Briefings on developments in Governance, Risk and Control 

TIAA produces regular briefing notes to summarise new developments in Governance, Risk and Control which may have an impact on our clients. These are shared with clients and made 

available through our Online Client Portal. A summary list of those CBNs issued in the last three months which may be of relevance to South Lakeland District Council is given below. Copies 

of any CBNs are available on request from your local TIAA team. 

Summary of recent Client Briefing Notes (CBNs) 

CBN Ref Subject Status TIAA Comments 

CBN - 21020 Public Procurement Update June 2021 

 

No Action Required 

This briefing note has been provided for noting only.  

CBN - 21022 NCSC Device Security Guidance 

 
Action Required 

All organisations are recommended to complete a health check to demonstrate that the 

holistic management of connected IT devices meet with current best practice. Audit 

committees and boards are recommended to seek assurance by either internal checks, or 

independent audit and review. 

CBN - 21023 Public Procurement Update July 2021 

 

No Action Required 

This briefing note has been provided for noting only. 

CBN - 21024 Cyber Device Security Guidance 

 

No Action Required 

This briefing note has been provided for noting only. 

CBN – 21025 Action Fraud Reporting Service 

 

No Action Required 

This briefing note has been provided for noting only. 

 

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 24



 August 2021 

 

 

 

 

 Internal Audit  

  FINAL  

   APPENDIX 2a  

 South Lakeland District Council    

 Assurance Review of Contract Management    

 2021/22    

     

 

P
age 25



   

 

   
South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Contract Management 
Page 1 

 

 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSESSMENT  KEY STRATEGIC FINDINGS 

 

 

 

Contract Procedure Rules were contravened in that no written quotations or 

tenders were invited in relation to a supply of materials outside the main 

contract. 

 

Contract Procedure Rules were contravened in that no written contract was 

in place for this £62,000 supply of materials. 

 

Testing confirmed that costs, including valuations and variations, are 

properly supported and are correctly coded in the finance system. 

 

From the sample of health and safety reports examined, no major failures or 

significant hazards were identified. 
 

ASSURANCE OVER KEY STRATEGIC RISK / OBJECTIVE  GOOD PRACTICE IDENTIFIED 

15 - Customer Connect Programme 

 

 

The Constitution is regularly reviewed and includes detailed Contract 

Procedure Rules. 

 

Regular design team meetings and site health and safety inspections took 

place throughout the duration of the contract. 
 

   

SCOPE  ACTION POINTS 

In December 2019, planning permission was obtained to remodel the Council’s main office 

locations in Kendal. The review considered the contract management arrangements for the 

refurbishment works at Kendal Town Hall and South Lakeland House. The review covered 

contractor management, site health and safety, site meetings and progress, cash flow, 

certification and invoicing. 

 

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 2 0 0 

 

P
age 26



   

 

      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Contract Management 

Page 2 

 

Assurance - Key Findings and Management Action Plan (MAP) 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

1 Directed Paragraph 3 (Exemptions and Waivers) of the 

Contract Procedure Rules lays down certain 

circumstances whereby nothing in the Rules 

requires written quotations or tenders to be 

invited. A Request For Exemption From The 

Contract Procedure Rules Form has been 

developed in this regard. No such form was 

completed for the supply of stage curtains, 

curtains and blinds for the project from Judith 

Harrop - Interior Design. No written 

quotations or tenders were invited in relation 

to this supply. 

Contract Procedure Rules be followed 

for each procurement exercise unless a 

Request For Exemption From The 

Contract Procedure Rules Form has 

been properly completed and 

approved. 

2 Instruction to be issued to Assets and 

Commercial team to adhere to 

exemption and waiver procedures if 

appointing single contractor for the 

works. Waiver/ exemption to be signed 

off prior to works order being placed.  

31/08/21 Operational 

Lead for 

Delivery and 

Commercial 

Services 

2 Directed No contract was evidenced for the supply of 

curtains for the project, with a value of 

£61,878, from Judith Harrop - Interior Design. 

Paragraph 5 of Article 14 to the Constitution 

references that contracts over £60,000 will be 

under seal. Section 4 of the Contract 

Procedure Rules relates to the contract and 

other formalities. Paragraph 25.1 references 

that contracts over £10,000 shall be in 

writing. Paragraph 25.4.8 references that 

contracts over £60,000 shall include a 

consideration of the need for liquidated 

damages. 

Paragraph 5 of Article 14 to the 

Constitution be followed in that 

contracts over £60,000 be under seal. 

Paragraph 25.1 of the Contract 

Procedure Rules be followed in that 

contracts over £10,000 be in writing. 

Paragraph 25.4.8 be followed in that 

contracts over £60,000 shall include a 

consideration of the need for 

liquidated damages. 

2 Instruction to be issued to Assets and 

Commercial team to adhere to Contract 

procedure rules and no works to 

commence on site without contract 

being in place.  

31/08/21 Operational 

Lead for 

Delivery and 

Commercial 

Services 

 

P
age 27



   

 

ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures. 

South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Contract Management 

Page 3 

 

Operational - Effectiveness Matter (OEM) Action Plan 
 

Ref Risk Area Finding Suggested Action Management Comments 

No Operational Effectiveness Matters were identified. 

 

P
age 28



 

 September 2021 

 

 

 

 

 Internal Audit  

  FINAL  

   APPENDIX 2b  

 South Lakeland District Council    

 Assurance Review of Procurement    

 2021/22    

     

 

P
age 29



   

 

   
South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Procurement 
Page 1 

 

 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSESSMENT  KEY STRATEGIC FINDINGS 

 

 

 

Only a single form to support each request for exemption from the Contract 

Procedure Rules should be used. Each should be held centrally. 

 

The required authorisations per the Contract Procedure Rules and those per 

the Request For Exemption From The Contract Procedure Rules forms should 

be aligned. 

 

Procurement information under the Local Government Transparency Code 

2015 is not being published on the Council website at the required quarterly 

frequency. 

 

Quarterly Corporate Financial Updates are reported to Cabinet and to 

Council which provide variance analyses within both the revenue and the 

capital budgets. 
 

ASSURANCE OVER KEY STRATEGIC RISK / OBJECTIVE  GOOD PRACTICE IDENTIFIED 

23 - Significant Contracts 

 

 

The Constitution is regularly reviewed and includes detailed Contract 

Procedure Rules and Financial Procedure Rules. 

 

From the testing performed, procurement practices adopted by the Council 

help deliver value for money and are in line with procurement rules. 
 

   

SCOPE  ACTION POINTS 

The review considered the procurement practices adopted by the Council in obtaining 

goods and services, ensuring procurement exercises deliver value for money and are in line 

with current procurement rules. This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme 

of key financial and governance audits. 

 

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 4 1 0 

 

P
age 30



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Procurement 

Page 2 

 

Assurance - Key Findings and Management Action Plan (MAP) 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

1 Directed A requirement of the Local Government 

(Transparency Requirements) (England) 

Regulations 2015 is that the Council must 

publish the information specified in Part 2 of 

the Local Government Transparency Code 

2015 on the occasions specified in Part 2 of 

the Code. Part 2.1 of the Code lists 

procurement information to be published 

quarterly and on each occasion not later than 

one month after the quarter to which the 

data and information is applicable. Part 3.1 of 

the Code recommends data be published on 

a monthly instead of quarterly basis, or 

ideally, as soon as it is generated and 

therefore becomes available. Testing showed 

that the most current data set published by 

the Council is dated 22nd November 2019. 

Prior to that date it was publishing data 

neither at the recommended frequency of 

every month, nor at the statutory frequency 

of every three months. 

In compliance with the Local 

Government (Transparency 

Requirements) (England) Regulations 

2015, procurement information be 

published on a quarterly basis. In line 

with a recommendation of the Local 

Government Transparency Code 2015, 

consideration be given to publishing 

this data at least monthly. 

2 The Specialist-Performance, Innovation 

and Commissioning will look at the 

process for publication with the 

Caseworker for Freedom of 

Information. URL links will be tested 

and the information will be published 

on a quarterly basis. 

Monthly publication has been 

considered, but may be unachievable 

due to LGR workload issues. 

31/12/21 Specialist – 

Performance 

Innovation and 

Commissioning 

P
age 31



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Procurement 

Page 3 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

3 Directed Eight Request For Exemption From The 

Contract Procedure Rules forms were 

sampled from a population of 54 recent 

requests identified by the Specialist 

(Procurement). These relate to contracts with 

values from below £10,000 up to £240,000. 

One form from the eight sampled was fully 

and accurately completed. Five forms did not 

evidence the signature of the Chief Finance 

Officer or the Monitoring Officer. Three forms 

did not evidence the signature of the 

Director. For one exemption, it was 

confirmed that no form was prepared. 

Contract Procedure Rules be followed 

for each procurement exercise unless a 

Request For Exemption From The 

Contract Procedure Rules form has 

been properly completed and 

approved. 

2 A new Exemption system is being 

developed which provides alerts to 

those involved in the process. This will 

be a form that will be accessible to all 

who are involved in the procurement 

process and will be saved centrally.  

Due to the previous issues we have had 

with Sharepoint, we are looking to do 

this through Integra.  Alerts can be 

raised to those in the process and 

therefore can be tracked properly. 

31/12/21 Procurement 

Specialist 

4 Directed Testing of the Request For Exemption From 

The Contract Procedure Rules forms were 

from versions visible to and provided by the 

Specialist (Procurement), who indicated that 

these may not be the final versions of the 

forms and that multiple versions may have 

been used. 

Request For Exemption From The 

Contract Procedure Rules forms be 

held in a single location visible to all 

Officers who would need access. Only 

one form be used to evidence all 

required authorisations. 

2 See recommendation 3 above 31/12/21  

P
age 32



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Procurement 

Page 4 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

5 Directed Section 3 of the Contract Procedure Rules is 

Exemptions and Waivers. This stipulates that 

Procurement Specialists must be consulted 

before an exemption is agreed. Request For 

Exemption From The Contract Procedure 

Rules forms do not evidence consultation 

with Procurement Specialists. Section 3 of the 

Contract Procedure Rules does not require 

that the Monitoring Officer be consulted 

before an exemption is agreed. Request For 

Exemption From The Contract Procedure 

Rules forms include evidence of consultation 

with the Monitoring Officer. 

Section 3 of the Contract Procedure 

Rules and template Request For 

Exemption From The Contract 

Procedure Rules forms be aligned to 

provide clarity as to which Officers are 

required to be consulted and to 

approve requests for exemptions from 

the Rules. 

2 The Monitoring Officer has expressed 

an interest in the Authorisation process 

and this has meant that the form has 

pre-empted a change to the 

Procurement Regulations within the 

Constitution. 

This will be addressed in the 

forthcoming update to the Contract 

Procedure Rules. 

30/11/21 Monitoring 

Officer 

P
age 33



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Procurement 

Page 5 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

2 Directed A requirement of the Local Government 

(Transparency Requirements) (England) 

Regulations 2015 is that the Council must 

publish the information specified in Part 2 of 

the Local Government Transparency Code 

2015 in the manner and form specified in Part 

2 of the Code. Part 3.1 of the Code lists 

additional procurement information 

recommended for publication. The Local 

Government Association (LGA) has published 

"Local transparency guidance – publishing 

spending and procurement information". An 

annexed Contract Register Template lists the 

mandatory data fields, the additional 

recommended data fields and other data 

fields considered optional. Of the 40 data 

fields in total, 14 are mandatory and a further 

five are recommended. Testing of the 

mandatory and recommended data fields 

showed that the Council is publishing all 

mandatory data fields and also all 

recommended data fields other than 

'Performance information URL'. 

In line with a recommendation of the 

Local Government Transparency Code 

2015, the 'Performance information 

URL' data field be published. 

3 There is currently some confusion as to 

what the URL is supposed to link to and 

where to gain that information. 

This has been looked at by the 

Procurement Specialist, Legal Specialist 

and Specialist Performance, Innovation 

and Commissioning. It has been 

decided that the effort required to 

implement this recommendation 

outweighs the benefits to the public of 

including this field in the Contracts 

Register 

N/A Procurement 

Specialist/ 

Specialist 

Performance 

Innovation and 

Commissioning

/Specialist 

Legal 

 

P
age 34



   

 

ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures. 

South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Procurement 

Page 6 

 

Operational - Effectiveness Matter (OEM) Action Plan 
 

Ref Risk Area Finding Suggested Action Management Comments 

No Operational Effectiveness Matters were identified. 

 

P
age 35



 

 September 2021 

 

 

 

 

 Internal Audit  

  FINAL  

   APPENDIX 2c  

 South Lakeland District Council    

 Assurance Review of Debtors    

 2021/22    

     

 

P
age 36



   

 

   
South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Debtors 
Page 1 

 

 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSESSMENT  KEY STRATEGIC FINDINGS 

 

 

 

Invoices and credit notes are properly supported and are actioned on a 

timely basis. 

 

A comprehensive list of period-end checks and balances is used, which are 

fully completed each month. 

 

Sufficient effort is made to manage and control the level of outstanding debt, 

with the Finance team sending regular communications to the relevant 

departments. 

 

The Lake Administration Committee is regularly receiving updates on the 

level of leases and encroachments debt. 
 

ASSURANCE OVER KEY STRATEGIC RISK / OBJECTIVE  GOOD PRACTICE IDENTIFIED 

6 - Medium Term Financial Planning – delivery of a balanced budget 

 

 

The Constitution includes various controls and delegations relating to the 

debtors function and provides for a sensible segregation of duties. 

 

Several detailed procedures are maintained. They align with best practice 

and help to ensure consistency of the various workstreams over time. 
 

   

SCOPE  ACTION POINTS 

The review considered the controls in place to recover monies owed to the Council through 

monitoring and recovery activity. This review forms part of the rolling three-year 

programme of key financial and governance audits. 

 

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 0 1 0 

 

P
age 37



   

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Debtors 

Page 2 

 

Assurance - Key Findings and Management Action Plan (MAP) 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

1 Directed A thorough spreadsheet is maintained 

entitled Period-end Tasks which is completed 

monthly by the Officer responsible for the 

stated task. A review of these spreadsheets 

for the current financial year to date showed 

that they were completed on a timely basis. 

There is space provided for an overall period-

end review by the Chief Accountant or Head 

of Finance. For the spreadsheets reviewed, 

there was no entry to indicate such a review 

had occurred. The Case Management Team 

Leader (Support Services) stated that no 

formal review had been carried out in recent 

months due to workloads and that the 

process and the requirement for this extra 

check to be done will be reviewed. 

The requirement for the existing 

overall review of the Period-end Tasks 

spreadsheets by the Finance Lead 

Specialist, or a delegate, be assessed, 

with a view to retaining a practical 

balance between ongoing workloads 

versus any potential weakness in 

control that the lack of such a review 

may expose. The Period-end Tasks 

template be updated accordingly. 

3 Agreed. 30/09/21 Finance 

Specialist 

(Systems and 

Capital) 

 

P
age 38



   

 

ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures. 

South Lakeland District Council 
Assurance Review of Debtors 

Page 3 

 

Operational - Effectiveness Matter (OEM) Action Plan 
 

Ref Risk Area Finding Suggested Action Management Comments 

No Operational Effectiveness Matters were identified. 

 

 

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 40



 

 

 

 

Internal Audit 
 

September 2021 

 

   

 

APPENDIX 3 

 

 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

 Follow Up Review 

 2021/22 

FINAL 

P
age 41



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 1 

 

Executive Summary 

Introduction 

1. This follow up review by TIAA established the management action that has been taken in respect of the recommendations arising from the internal audit reviews listed below at 

South Lakeland District Council. The review was carried out in September 2021. 

Review Year Date Presented to Audit Committee 

Follow-up – July 2021 2021/22 29/07/2021 

Corporate Governance – Compliance with Local Code 2020/21 29/07/2021 

Asset Management 2020/21 29/07/2021 

Key Findings & Action Points 

2. The follow up review considered whether the management action taken addresses the control issues that gave rise to the recommendations. The implementation of these 

recommendations can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against misstatement or loss. From the work carried out the following evaluations of the progress of 

the management actions taken to date have been identified. 

Evaluation Number of Recommendations 

Implemented 13 

Outstanding 33 

Considered but not Implemented - 

Not Implemented 1 

P
age 42



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 2 

 

3. The key issue identified is that although there has been some slippage, most recently due to COVID-19, recommendations continue to be implemented. Of the 47 recommendations 

in this report, 28% have been implemented. Of the 33 recommendations that remain outstanding, 70% are due to slippage beyond the original implementation date and 30% are 

because the original implementation date has not yet arrived. Due to the reorganisation measures under the ongoing Local Government Reform, one recommendation is no longer 

applicable and therefore will not be implemented. 

Scope and Limitations of the Review  

4. The review considered the progress made in implementing the recommendations made in the previous internal audit reports and established the extent to which management 

has taken the necessary actions to address the control issues that gave rise to the internal audit recommendations. 

5. The responsibility for a sound system of internal controls rests with management and work performed by internal audit should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and 

weaknesses that may exist. Neither should internal audit work be relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud or irregularity, should there be any, although the audit 

procedures have been designed so that any material irregularity has a reasonable probability of discovery. Even sound systems of internal control may not be proof against collusive 

fraud. 

6. For the purposes of this review reliance was placed on management to provide internal audit with full access to staff and to accounting records and transactions and to ensure the 

authenticity of these documents. 

Disclaimer 

7. The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the auditor during the course of our work and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all 

the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use and must not be recited or referred to in whole 

or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other 

purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this report and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of 

whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

Release of Report 

8. The table below sets out the history of this report. 

Date draft report issued: 6th September 2021 

Date management responses rec’d: 7th September 2021 

Date final report issued: 7th September 2021 

  

P
age 43



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 3 

 

Executive Summary 

Follow Up 

9. Management representations were obtained on the action taken to address the recommendations and limited testing has been carried out to confirm these management 

representations. The following matters were identified in considering the recommendations that have not been fully implemented: 

10. Follow-up – July 2021 

Audit title Insurance Audit year 2017/18 Priority 2 

Recommendation A periodic reconciliation be performed between the system operated by Fleet and the claims system maintained by the Insurance Team to help 

ensure that all motor insurance work is properly claimed. 

Initial management 

response 

We will work with Fleet to carry out reconciliations and will monitor the effectiveness of these. 

Responsible Officer/s Operational Lead Delivery and 

Commercial Services 

Original implementation 

date 

30/01/2018 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/12/2020 

31/03/2021 

Latest Update The Operational Lead Delivery and Commercial Services advised that the recommendation remains on track to meet its implementation date. 

New implementation date 31/12/2021 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 

date has not been met. 
 
  

P
age 44



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 4 

 

 

 

Audit title Licensing – Premises & Clubs Audit year 2017/18 Priority 2 

Recommendation The Statement of Licensing Policy be amended to reflect the current application routes. 

Initial management 

response 

The policy is set by statutory guidance from the Home Office, underpinning this there is an EU service provision directive requiring on line 

applications and payments. The current IT suppliers do not provide this capability and we have already recognised this as a significant weakness in 

the current system and is one of the main IT requirements in the new IT solution.  This is a key finding of the gap analysis. Due to the work involved 

and the cost we propose action is deferred until the new IT product is delivered. 

Responsible Officer/s Principal Specialist (Health & 

Environment) 

Original implementation 

date 

31/12/2018 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/12/2020 

Latest Update For the previous follow-up report, the Principal Specialist (Health & Environment) had advised that the new implementation date remained on 

target to be met. No further update was provided for this report. 

New implementation date 31/10/2021 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 

date has not been met. 

 

Audit title Awarding of Grants Audit year 2017/18 Priority 2 

Recommendation An overarching policy on the provision of financial aid be approved which addresses any potential provision of State Aid. 

Initial management 

response 

Following completion of the review recommended at point 10 above, an overarching policy can be prepared which will set out the broad principles 

to be taken into account when entering into grant arrangements with an economic activity. This will be completed within 3 months of completion 

of recommendation 10. 

Responsible Officer/s Legal, Governance and 

Democratic Services Specialist 

Original implementation 

date 

31/03/2019 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/03/2020 

31/03/2021 

31/12/2021 

Latest Update This work is in progress. Draft documentation regarding the Subsidy Control regime and compliance has been prepared and a workshop has been 

held with relevant officers to discuss principles/approach.  It is anticipated that the documentation will be finalised and presented to CMT by 31 

December 2021. 

New implementation date 31/12/2021 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 

date has not been met. 

 
  

P
age 45



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 5 

 

 

Audit title Debtors Audit year 2018/19 Priority 2 

Recommendation Procedures be amended to highlight the importance of the existing mitigating controls that address the risk that a separation of duties does not 

exist between the person raising and the person authorising a sales invoice and the risk that authorisation levels for sales invoices are not defined. 

Initial management 

response 

There are an increasing proportion of invoices raised through interfaces from other systems, particularly for rents from the Technology Forge 

system which would complicate the approval process. The Customer Connect programme includes a full review of all processes.  This 

recommendation will be considered as part of that review. 

Responsible Officer/s Operational Lead Support 

Services 

Original implementation 

date 

31/03/2019 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/03/2020 

30/06/2021 

30/11/2021 

Latest Update The Case Management Team Leader (Support Services) advised that further delays to the service redesign, notably due to the Local Government 

Reform, would suggest that the previously advised due date of 30/11/2021 will not now be met. 

New implementation date 31/01/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 

date has not been met. 

 

Audit title Cyber Security Audit year 2018/19 Priority 2 

Recommendation A risk analysis be undertaken of the impact potential cyber threats may have on the Authority which should evaluate both technical and behavioural 

risk, cover those aspects of ICT delivery contained in the NCSC/CESG 10 steps to Cyber Security and include on-going consideration of security alerts 

issued by recognised cyber security authorities. 

Initial management 

response 

Agreed for the risks of Cyber threats to be reviewed at a corporate level using the NCSC 10 steps as a guide. This should be linked into the business 

continuity and disaster recovery plans. 

Responsible Officer/s Performance, Innovation and 

Commissioning Specialist 

Original implementation 

date 

31/12/2019 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/12/2020 

30/06/2021 

Latest Update The Performance, Innovation and Commissioning Specialist advised that the recommendation remains on target to be implemented by its latest 

due date. 

New implementation date 30/10/2021 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 

date has not been met. 

 
  

P
age 46



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 6 

 

 

Audit title Cyber Security Audit year 2018/19 Priority 2 

Recommendation A cyber security incident response plan be produced identifying the various types of action required to address known threats detailed in the cyber 

risk analysis, referenced to detailed procedures dealing with the different actions required to the diverse types of security threat to which the 

Council may be subject. The arrangements for investigation of cyber incidents be supported by detailed forensic readiness procedures in order to 

preserve evidence to assist with the investigation and resolution of incidents and lessons learnt recorded. 

Initial management 

response 

Agreed that a security incident management policy and a corresponding response plan are required. 

Responsible Officer/s Performance, Innovation and 

Commissioning Specialist 

Original implementation 

date 

30/09/2019 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/12/2020 

30/06/2021 

Latest Update The Performance, Innovation and Commissioning Specialist advised that the recommendation remains on target to be implemented by its latest 

due date. 

New implementation date 30/10/2021 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 

date has not been met. 

 

Audit title Cyber Security Audit year 2018/19 Priority 2 

Recommendation Once in place, the cyber security incident plans and procedures be periodically tested, for example during testing/rehearsal of the corporate 

business continuity arrangements. The Audit Committee be made aware of the contents and requirements of the policy, procedures and response 

plans. 

Initial management 

response 

The Management Policy and response plan will be shared with Audit Committee when completed. 

Responsible Officer/s Performance, Innovation and 

Commissioning Specialist 

Original implementation 

date 

31/12/2019 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/12/2020 

30/06/2021 

Latest Update The Performance, Innovation and Commissioning Specialist advised that the recommendation remains on target to be implemented by its latest 

due date. 

New implementation date 30/10/2021 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 

date has not been met. 

 
  

P
age 47



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 7 

 

 

Audit title Empty Homes Audit year 2019/20 Priority 2 

Recommendation The Empty Homes Strategy definition of an empty home be reconsidered to better align with the work performed by the Empty Homes Officer. 

Initial management 

response 

Definition to be revised on next review of the Strategy. 

Responsible Officer/s Principal Specialist (People) Original implementation 

date 

31/12/2020 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

30/06/2021 

Latest Update For the previous follow-up report, the Principal Specialist (People) stated that a review will be considered at a meeting of the Portfolio Holder’s 

Housing and Planning Advisory Group on 14/10/2021. The Principal Specialist (People) was contacted to provide a further update for this report 

but no response was received. 

New implementation date 14/10/2021 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 

date has not been met. 

 

Audit title Household Waste Collection Audit year 2019/20 Priority 3 

Recommendation Current terms of reference for the Waste and Recycling Project Board be formulated and subject to periodic review and approval. 

Initial management 

response 

Review at next Project Board meet with input from Simon and Sion. 

Responsible Officer/s Operational Lead for Delivery 

and Commercial Services/ 

Principal Street scene Officer 

Original implementation 

date 

September 2019 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/03/2021 

30/06/2021 

30/09/2021 

Latest Update The Delivery and Commercial Officer (Delivery and Commercial Services) advised that this has not been re-implemented due to the Covid priorities. 

There will be a review of this situation when more information is available about Local Government Reform and the requirements of the national 

waste consultation. 

New implementation date 30/06/2022 Status Outstanding A new implementation date has been proposed. 

 
  

P
age 48



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 8 

 

 

Audit title Data Protection Compliance Audit year 2019/20 Priority 2 

Recommendation It be ensured that all staff complete the GDPR E-learning so that compliance can be evidenced and assurance gained that all staff have adequate 

GDPR awareness. 

Initial management 

response 

Agree with recommendations – linked to Information and Cyber Security Audit Recommendations - current e-learning package to be reviewed in 

light of new staff roles - notably Customer Contact and Case Management roles. Consult and seek recommendations from Corporate Learning & 

Development Team. Resources to be made available, and a training package to be developed and used as part of a regular cycle of training for 

staff. 

Responsible Officer/s Performance, Innovation and 

Commissioning Specialist 

Original implementation 

date 

31/12/2020 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/12/2021 

Latest Update The Performance, Innovation and Commissioning Specialist advised that the recommendation remains on target to be implemented by its latest 

due date. 

New implementation date  Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 

date has not been met. 

 

Audit title Contract Management Audit year 2019/20 Priority 1 

Recommendation A guidance procedure be developed to provide responsible officers with a framework for managing and monitoring their contracts. 

Initial management 

response 

Noted that this is the case. Updated guidance procedure to be developed and implemented in line with recommendations 11 and 9. 

Responsible Officer/s Finance Lead Specialist & 

Procurement Specialist 

Original implementation 

date 

31/05/2020 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/12/2020 

31/12/2021 

Latest Update The Procurement Specialist indicated that work is resuming shortly on the Procurement regulations and guidance should be complete with three 

months of these being issued. 

New implementation date 31/01/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 

date has not been met. 

 
  

P
age 49



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 9 

 

 

Audit title Contract Management Audit year 2019/20 Priority 2 

Recommendation The contract management and procedure documents be updated to reflect the new procurement and contract management processes within the 

Council. 

Initial management 

response 

Noted and agreed. There is conflicting policy information which is leading to poor practice. Currently liaising with Strategy Specialist. 

Responsible Officer/s Procurement Specialist Original implementation 

date 

31/12/2020 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/05/2021 

31/10/2021 

Latest Update The Procurement Specialist indicated that it is to be realised within three months of the updated Procurement Procedure Rules. 

New implementation date 31/01/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 

date has not been met. 

 

Audit title Contract Management Audit year 2019/20 Priority 2 

Recommendation A standard format for all contract files be developed including a contract risk register. 

Initial management 

response 

Noted and agreed. Although there are some template documents the portfolio needs to be increased and included in the training. 

Responsible Officer/s Procurement Specialist Original implementation 

date 

31/05/2020 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/12/2020 

31/05/2021 

Latest Update The Procurement Specialist indicated that that there has been a request for documentation and a pack is being trialled. Evidence was provided as 

to the progress of this recommendation. The recommendation remains on track to meet its new implementation date of 31/10/2021. 

New implementation date 31/10/2021 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 

date has not been met. 

 
  

P
age 50



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 10 

 

 

Audit title Contract Management Audit year 2019/20 Priority 3 

Recommendation All projects be identified prior to the start of the new financial year. 

Initial management 

response 

Finance directive, but with improved contracts register this can feed in and hopefully make the process more accurate. 

Responsible Officer/s Finance Lead Specialist with 

Procurement Specialist 

Original implementation 

date 

31/03/2020 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/12/2020 

Latest Update The Procurement Specialist restated that the new implementation date still stands. 

New implementation date 28/02/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 

date has not been met. 

 

P
age 51



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 11 

 

Audit title Customer Connect Audit year 2019/20 Priority 2 

Recommendation Ownership of anticipated benefits arising from the Digital project be allocated and the benefits restated based upon the new plan and reported to 

the Steering Group. 

Initial management 

response 

EsbAgile is one of many technology components which is part of the Digital and Customer Connect business cases. The original Digital Business 

Case was approved in April 2016 prior to Customer Connect but was always intended to be a key enabler for a major transformation programme 

such as Customer Connect. As part of the Customer Connect business case the requirements for technology were enhanced and as such the Digital 

Business case was in many ways consumed into Customer Connect. The Original Digital business case was jointly created with Eden DC and as such 

was governed by a joint digital board between SLDC and Eden DC. All decisions made in relation to delivering the Digital business case, including 

changes to timelines and budget requirements, were made by the joint digital board and as such agreed by both SLDC and Eden DC. Localised 

decisions are made in relation to the detailed configuration and exploitation of the technology which has been delivered. The Shared ICT Services 

Manager and the Scrum Master, will revisit the Digital Business Case and Customer Connect business case, identify the areas of technology which 

remain to be delivered, review against benefits required and align these into an updated forward delivery plan. The output of this work will be 

included in a wider report which is destined to be presented to the December Overview and Scrutiny Committee followed by Cabinet and Council 

on the overall programme deliverables, outcomes and benefits. This report will include all aspects of the programme and will highlight what is still 

left to achieve and how work will continue in the future. A new set of benefits will then be developed against future service improvements. 

Responsible Officer/s Shared ICT Manager and 

SCRUM Master 

Original implementation 

date 

December 2020 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/03/2022 

Latest Update The Operational Lead – Customer and Locality Services advised that due to the Local Government Reform measures the Customer Connect 

programme will not continue in its current form. As a result, the recommendation no longer remains applicable and will not be implemented. 

New implementation date  Status Not implemented The recommendation is no longer applicable. 

 

P
age 52



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 12 

 

Audit title Main Accounting Systems Audit year 2019/20 Priority 3 

Recommendation A mechanism be developed and implemented that routinely captures budget holder feedback of the support provided by Finance staff in order to 

maintain and further improve the process. 

Initial management 

response 

The implementation of a new budget monitoring approach moving towards a business partnering approach was introduced from Q1 2020/21. 

Feedback will be gathered from Q2 2020/21 onwards both from budget holders and the finance team. Budget monitoring process will evolve during 

the remainder of the financial year.  

Responsible Officer/s Finance Lead Specialist Original implementation 

date 

30/09/2020 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/05/2021 

Latest Update The Finance Lead Specialist provided a timetable for the upcoming programme of training. This includes training on budgets and monitoring to be 

held in September 2021. 

New implementation date 30/09/2021 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 

date has not been met. 

 

Audit title Leisure Services Audit year 2019/20 Priority 3 

Recommendation A risk register for third party contracts be developed to reduce the risk of non-compliance of contract monitoring, as stated within the Contract 

Management Policy. 

Initial management 

response 

Risk Register to be created for this contract. 

Responsible Officer/s Operational Lead Delivery and 

Commercial Services 

Original implementation 

date 

01/09/2020 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

30/06/2021 

Latest Update The Operational Lead Delivery and Commercial Services advised that the recommendation remains on track to meet its implementation date. 

New implementation date 30/09/2021 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 

date has not been met. 
 

 

P
age 53



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 13 

 

Audit title Payroll Audit year 2020/21 Priority 3 

Recommendation Only up-to-date payroll-related policies and guidance be published on the Council's website. A specific review date and document owner be stated 

within each document. 

Initial management 

response 

HR have a list and review dates of all policies. 

Responsible Officer/s Human Resources Specialist Original implementation 

date 

31/12/2021 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

 

Latest Update The Human Resources Specialist stated that all policies are being reviewed and updated where needed. The Human Resources Specialist was 

contacted to provide an update for this report but no response was received. From a review of the Council’s website it was confirmed that the 

recommendation has not yet been implemented. The original implementation date has not yet arrived. 

New implementation date  Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress to meet the original 

target date. 

 
 

Audit title Insurance Audit year 2020/21 Priority 3 

Recommendation The Annual Renewal of Insurance Contract Procedure be updated. 

Initial management 

response 

Accepted, work will be undertaken in the summer to update policy and procedures. 

Responsible Officer/s Finance Specialist and Deputy 

S151 Officer 

Original implementation 

date 

30/09/2021 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

 

Latest Update The Finance Specialist and Deputy S151 Officer was contacted to request an update for this report but no response was received. 

New implementation date  Status Outstanding The recommendations remains on track to meet its 

original implementation date. 

 

P
age 54



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 14 

 

Audit title Bereavement Services Audit year 2020/21 Priority 2 

Recommendation Existing procedures be amended to include a document date, owner and review period. A full suite of procedures be developed, maintained and 

tested, sufficient to facilitate effective succession planning. 

Initial management 

response 

Existing procedures will be amended to include a document date, owner and review period. Development of a full suite of procedures will be 

executed by existing staff supported by Bereavement Services Specialist when recruited. 

Responsible Officer/s Kayleigh Stockton and 

Bereavement Specialist (to be 

recruited) 

Original implementation 

date 

01/09/2021 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/12/2021 

Latest Update The Operational Lead – People, Welfare and Income Maximisation advised that the recommendation remains on track to be implemented by the 

stated date. 

New implementation date  Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 

date will not been met. 

 

Audit title Bereavement Services Audit year 2020/21 Priority 2 

Recommendation An overall schedule be maintained within Bereavement Services to properly plan and execute periodic site visits to each cemetery and graveyard, 

to inform any additional identified maintenance work, and to serve as further confirmation of the completion of the identified work. 

Initial management 

response 

Schedule to be developed along with a checklist of criteria to be assessed for maintenance works on an annual basis. Confirmation to be obtained 

and recorded against the checklist of the completion of any works required/carried out. 

Responsible Officer/s Vicky McDonald/ 

Bereavement Services 

Specialist 

Original implementation 

date 

01/09/2021 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

01/12/2021 

Latest Update The Operational Lead – People, Welfare and Income Maximisation advised that all sites now visited a least once per month to check on any requests 

outstanding and check quality of work as well as check the overall site quality etc. and identify any proactive works needed. All works needed are 

now recorded on a ‘maintenance of cemeteries tracker’ spreadsheet temporarily until digital form on ESB (which is in development) has been 

completed and is available for use (expected by 01/12/2021). This will form the basis of a documented record of appropriate checks completed. 

Bereavement Specialist is in regular communication with Continental Landscapes. Timescale for completion of ESB document has been delayed 

whilst the focus has been on developing a memorial safety policy which was approved by Cabinet on 01/09/2021 which needed to take priority. 

New implementation date  Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 

date has not been met. 

 

P
age 55



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 15 

 

 

Audit title Creditor Payments Audit year 2020/21 Priority 3 

Recommendation A detailed Financial Scheme of Delegation table be included in the Financial Procedures. 

Initial management 

response 

Authorisation limits are currently set within the Integra system so when POs are raised they are sent to the authoriser with the relevant limit. We 

are currently developing a self-serve SharePoint page incorporating easy to use guidance and access to a Crystal Report detailing all authorisers 

and their limits. The finance procedures will be updated to reference the information on SharePoint. 

Responsible Officer/s Specialist (Finance), Finance 

Lead Specialist 

Original implementation 

date 

30/06/2021 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

30/09/2021 

Latest Update The Specialist (Finance) advised that the recommendation remains on target to meet its current implementation date. 

New implementation date  Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 

date has not been met. 

 

Audit title Creditor Payments Audit year 2020/21 Priority 3 

Recommendation The Financial Procedures document be updated to include references to the Government's Prompt Payment Code and any other regulations 

relating to the prompt settlement of invoices. 

Initial management 

response 

A link to the Government’s Prompt Payment Code will be added to the Finance self-serve SharePoint page, again with reference to this added into 

the finance procedure rules. 

Responsible Officer/s Specialist (Finance), Finance 

Lead Specialist 

Original implementation 

date 

30/06/2021 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

30/09/2021 

Latest Update The Specialist (Finance) advised that the recommendation remains on target to meet its current implementation date. 

New implementation date  Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 

date has not been met. 
 

 

P
age 56



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 16 

 

Audit title Disabled Facilities Grants Audit year 2020/21 Priority 2 

Recommendation A review of the Constitution be completed to clarify procurement rules applicable to DFGs. 

Initial management 

response 

The Council carries out a continual review of its constitution. At the 23rd February 2021 Council meeting it was agreed that a constitutional working 

group was established comprising of the Party Leaders and Portfolio Holder. The Monitoring Officer is currently reviewing the procurement rules 

and contract procedure rules with the Leadership Team and other officers. This piece of work forms part of this review. Proposals will be presented 

to Leadership team, Constitutional Working Group and finally to the Council meeting. 

Responsible Officer/s Lead Specialist – Legal 

Governance, Democracy 

(Monitoring Officer) 

Original implementation 

date 

01/07/2021 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/10/2021 

Latest Update We have consulted Leadership Team and officers on the Contract Procedure Rules. Feedback has been collated and will be presented to the CMT 

and to the Constitutional Working Group followed by Council in September/October 2021. 

New implementation date 31/10/2021 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 

date has not been met. 

 

Audit title Disabled Facilities Grants Audit year 2020/21 Priority 3 

Recommendation The Disabled Facilities Grant Policy be reviewed in accordance with its stated review cycle. 

Initial management 

response 

The Disabled Facilities Grant Policy will be reviewed in 2021 to 2022. This will include a consultation period before the revised Policy goes through 

the relevant approval process. 

Responsible Officer/s Amanda Pharaoh (Specialist – 

Housing) 

Original implementation 

date 

31/03/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

 

Latest Update The Specialist – Housing reconfirmed that the recommendation remains on target to meet the original implementation date. 

New implementation date  Status Outstanding The recommendations remains on track to meet its 

original implementation date. 

 

P
age 57



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 17 

 

Audit title Disabled Facilities Grants Audit year 2020/21 Priority 3 

Recommendation The Disabled Facilities Grant Policy be enhanced to include: its link to Council priorities; and more explicit service standards. 

Initial management 

response 

The Disabled Facilities Grant Policy will be reviewed in 2021 to 2022. This will include a consultation period before the revised Policy goes through 

the relevant approval process. 

Responsible Officer/s Amanda Pharaoh (Specialist – 

Housing) 

Original implementation 

date 

31/03/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

 

Latest Update The Specialist – Housing reconfirmed that the recommendation remains on target to meet the original implementation date. 

New implementation date  Status Outstanding The recommendations remains on track to meet its 

original implementation date. 

 

Audit title Disabled Facilities Grants Audit year 2020/21 Priority 3 

Recommendation The Disabled Facilities Grant Procedure be updated to reflect the current structure and responsibilities. 

Initial management 

response 

The Procedure will be reviewed along with the Policy in 2021 to 2022. This will then reflect the current structure and responsibilities. 

Responsible Officer/s David Bradley (Specialist – 

Housing Standards) 

Original implementation 

date 

31/03/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

 

Latest Update The Specialist – Housing reconfirmed that the recommendation remains on target to meet the original implementation date. 

New implementation date  Status Outstanding The original implementation date has not yet arrived. 

 

Audit title Disabled Facilities Grants Audit year 2020/21 Priority 3 

Recommendation Applicants be required to confirm in writing their understanding that for any works to be carried out the two contracting parties are the applicant 

and the contractor. 

Initial management 

response 

This will be picked up during the review of the Policy and Procedures in 2021 to 2022. 

Responsible Officer/s David Bradley (Specialist – 

Housing Standards) 

Original implementation 

date 

31/03/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

 

Latest Update The Specialist – Housing reconfirmed that the recommendation remains on target to meet the original implementation date. 

New implementation date  Status Outstanding The original implementation date has not yet arrived. 
 

P
age 58



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 18 

 

 

Audit title NNDR Audit year 2020/21 Priority 2 

Recommendation A review of resources be undertaken and an action plan be developed to address the backlog of work and to ensure that there are adequate 

resources going forward. 

Initial management 

response 

A detailed analysis of workload and performance rates over the last 18 months is currently being prepared which will be used to form the basis of 

any recommendations to produce an action plan and increase resources to reduce the current backlog. Considerations are currently being made 

to extend an existing temporary resource, and employ further short term assistance to focus on the backlog clearance. 

Responsible Officer/s Operational Lead – Case 

Management 

Original implementation 

date 

30/06/2021 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/03/2022 

Latest Update The Operational Lead – Case Management advised that the vacant Specialist position has now been filled and the resource is in place. The existing 

Case Management temporary resource has been extended until November 2021. The additional temporary COVID post extended for a further 

12 months to August 2022. The backlog is reducing slowly despite the annual leave increase over July and August. The recommendation remains 

on track to meet the revised implementation date. 

New implementation date  Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 

date has not been met. 
 

 

Audit title Council Tax Audit year 2020/21 Priority 2 

Recommendation A review of resources be undertaken and an action plan be developed to address the backlog of work and to ensure that there are adequate 

resources going forward. 

Initial management 

response 

A detailed analysis of workload and performance rates over the last 18 months is currently being prepared which will be used to form the basis of 

any recommendations to produce an action plan and increase resources to reduce the current backlog. Considerations are currently being made 

to extend an existing temporary resource, and employ further short term assistance to focus on the backlog clearance. 

Responsible Officer/s Operational Lead – Case 

Management 

Original implementation 

date 

30/06/2021 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/03/2022 

Latest Update The Operational Lead – Case Management advised that the vacant Specialist position has now been filled and the resource is in place. The existing 

Case Management temporary resource has been extended until November 2021. The additional temporary COVID post extended for a further 

12 months to August 2022. The backlog is reducing slowly despite the annual leave increase over July and August. The recommendation remains 

on track to meet the revised implementation date. 

New implementation date  Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 

date has not been met. 
 

P
age 59



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 19 

 

 

Audit title Lake Services Audit year 2020/21 Priority 2 

Recommendation Invoiced amounts for encroachments be properly determined using accurate encroachment dimensions. Agreements be updated accordingly and 

invoices raised at correct rates, be they residential or commercial. This proper determination of invoiced amounts be effected more economically 

via a phased approach, on a case by case basis, rather than a full lake survey. 

Initial management 

response 

The Council’s leadership team are currently looking at digital prioritisation and Operational Lead for Delivery and Commercial services to feed this 

into process to stress the need for the new upgraded system. 

Responsible Officer/s Operational Lead for Delivery 

and Commercial Services 

Original implementation 

date 

31/03/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

 

Latest Update The Operational Lead for Delivery and Commercial Services advised that the original implementation date remains on target. 

New implementation date  Status Outstanding The original implementation date has not yet arrived. 

11. Asset Management 

Audit title Asset Management Audit year 2020/21 Priority 2 

Recommendation A set of procedure notes be prepared which cover all aspects of fixed asset management including the following: accounting and depreciation; 

maintenance and repairs; security and insurance; investment and budgeting; verification and audit; valuation and impairment cycles by asset class; 

and asset management systems used. 

Initial management 

response 

Agreed. A multi-disciplinary group has meet to discuss the practicality of this. Initially the procedure notes will concentrate on the higher-value 

assets, with some assets prepared later (e.g. museum collection). 

Responsible Officer/s Finance Lead Specialist 

supported by IT Shared 

Service Manager and 

Operational Lead for Delivery 

and Commercial Services 

Original implementation 

date 

31/12/2021 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

 

Latest Update The Finance Lead Specialist was contacted to request an update for this report but no response was received. The original implementation date 

has not yet arrived. 

New implementation date  Status Outstanding The original implementation date has not yet arrived. 

 

P
age 60



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 20 

 

Audit title Asset Management Audit year 2020/21 Priority 2 

Recommendation A formal annual asset verification program be implemented and documented whereby all assets, which are not captured by valuation and 

impairment reviews, are subject to verification. 

Initial management 

response 

The multi-disciplinary group also addressed this issue. Some assets are verified annually as part of the service delivery e.g. vehicles and plant which 

require regular service / tax / MOTs. Tagging of assets will be reviewed: all vehicles already have trackers. Other assets will be reviewed to identify 

the most appropriate method to verify existence and location on a regular basis. 

Responsible Officer/s Finance Lead Specialist 

supported by IT Shared 

Service Manager and 

Operational Lead for Delivery 

and Commercial Services 

Original implementation 

date 

31/12/2021 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

 

Latest Update The Finance Lead Specialist was contacted to request an update for this report but no response was received. The original implementation date 

has not yet arrived. 

New implementation date  Status Outstanding The original implementation date has not yet arrived. 

 

P
age 61



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 21 

 

Audit title Asset Management Audit year 2020/21 Priority 2 

Recommendation Assets, which are not subject to a valuation exercise and depreciation, such as Held for Sale, Investment Properties and Heritage Assets, be subject 

to quarterly reconciliations. The reconciliation should also consider the Assets under Construction account. 

Initial management 

response 

Investment Properties are revalued annually as required by proper accounting practices. Assets Held for Sale are also reviewed annually as this 

classification is only applicable if it is expected that the sale will occur in the next financial year. Assets under Construction are reviewed annually 

to ensure this category is appropriate: I cannot recall an occasion when an asset was under construction across 2 financial year-ends. There are 2 

categories of asset where valuations are only carried out every 4-years and no depreciation is charged: Heritage Assets and Community Assets. 

There are seldom changes to the assets held in these categories except to add play areas acquired under s106 agreements. Bearing these points in 

mind the quarterly capital monitoring will consider if there are any changes to these categories but a full quarterly reconciliation seems excessive. 

Responsible Officer/s Specialist (Finance) Original implementation 

date 

30/09/2021 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

14/12/2021 

Latest Update The Specialist (Finance) advised that this will be implemented for Q2 reporting; the report for which will be prepared during October. Q1 reporting 

went to Cabinet at its meeting on 1st September 2021 and will go to Council on 5th October 2021. The subsequent meeting of Council is scheduled 

for 14th December 2021, at which it is anticipated that the Corporate Financial Update Quarter 2, 2021/22 report will be presented. 

New implementation date  Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 

date will not met. 

  

P
age 62



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 22 

 

12. The following recommendations have been implemented. 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Responsible 

Officer 

Due Date 

Risk Management Risk Management training be mandatory for key organisational roles. 2 Customer Connect 

Programme Board. 

Report actioned by 

Case Management. 

Staff documentation 

actioned by Lead 

Human Resources 

Specialist. Member 

documentation 

actioned by Legal, 

Governance and 

Democratic Services 

Specialist. 

31/07/2021 

Contract Management It be ensured that the Sustainable Commissioning and Procurement Framework 

currently being developed includes an action plan for robust monitoring 

processes, similar to the current strategy, to ensure continual improvement, value 

for money and to confirm that the Council's vision and objectives are being 

achieved. 

2 Finance Lead 

Specialist & 

Procurement 

Specialist 

31/07/2021 

Bereavement Services In respect of sales from Bereavement Services, data entered into the finance 

system be sufficient to provide a proper audit trial to the relevant supporting 

information. 

2 Vicky McDonald/ 

Kayleigh Stockton 

01/08/2021 

Payroll The current establishment be reflected in the ‘Exceptional Effort / Merit / 

Qualification and/or Examination Success’ form. 

3 Human Resources 

Specialist 

31/12/2021 

P
age 63



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 23 

 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Responsible 

Officer 

Due Date 

Creditor Payments Creditor Turnover (Creditor Days) ratio and other relevant metrics be included as 

part of the financial KPI reporting framework. 

3 Specialist (Finance), 

Finance Case 

Management Team 

Leader (Support 

Services), Finance 

Specialist and Deputy 

S151 Officer 

31/07/2021 

Corporate Governance – Compliance 

with Local Code 

Local arrangement A1 of the Local Code of Governance be changed to "make a 

Chief Executive (or equivalent) responsible and accountable to the authority for 

all aspects of operational management" as appropriate. 

2 Finance Lead 

Specialist 

30/04/2021 

Corporate Governance – Compliance 

with Local Code 

Local arrangement B8 (consider those institutional stakeholders to whom we are 

accountable and assess the effectiveness of the relationships and any changes 

required) from the 2018 version of the Local Code of Governance but omitted 

from the 2019 version be reinstated if it remains applicable. 

2 Finance Lead 

Specialist 

30/04/2021 

Corporate Governance – Compliance 

with Local Code 

The mapping of the Guidance behaviours and actions that demonstrate good 

governance in practice be mapped only to sub-principles in the Local Code that 

pertain to the same principle to which the behaviour and action relate. 

2 Finance Lead 

Specialist 

31/05/2021 

Corporate Governance – Compliance 

with Local Code 

A self-assessment response be completed for each of the 235 'examples of 

systems, processes, documentation and other evidence demonstrating 

compliance' provided in Chapter Five of the CIPFA/SOLACE Guidance. 

2 Finance Lead 

Specialist 

31/05/2021 

Corporate Governance – Compliance 

with Local Code 

The evidence provided in the self-assessment spreadsheet in support of the self-

assessment score be fully completed, directly relevant and referenced to current 

documentation, via working hyperlinks as appropriate. 

2 Finance Lead 

Specialist 

31/05/2021 

P
age 64



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 24 

 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Responsible 

Officer 

Due Date 

Corporate Governance – Compliance 

with Local Code 

In line with the CIPFA Bulletin 'Application of the Good Governance Framework 

2020/21', the Local Code of Governance be updated to include identifying how 

governance is operating during the current year, including changes made to adapt 

to the impact of Covid-19. Where changes have been made to ensure that the 

Council can meet the Principles of the CIPFA Financial Management Code 2019, 

appropriate updates be made to the Local Code for current and future years. 

2 Finance Lead 

Specialist 

31/05/2021 

Corporate Governance – Compliance 

with Local Code 

When determining its self-assessment responses in accordance with Chapter Five 

of Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Guidance Notes, the line be 

included for:  

 Principle D; 

 Sub-principle; 

 Planning interventions; 

 Behaviours and actions that demonstrate good governance in practice; 

 Informing medium and long term resource planning by drawing up 

realistic estimates of revenue and capital expenditure aimed at 

developing a sustainable funding strategy; and 

 Examples of systems, processes, documentation and other evidence 

demonstrating compliance: Corporate Plans. 

3 Finance Lead 

Specialist 

31/05/2021 

Corporate Governance – Compliance 

with Local Code 

A Responsible Officer be included for each of the 235 'examples of systems, 

processes, documentation and other evidence demonstrating compliance' 

provided in Chapter Five of the CIPFA/SOLACE Guidance. 

3 Finance Lead 

Specialist 

31/05/2021 

 

P
age 65



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 66



South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

Thursday, 23 September 2021 

Audited Statement of Accounts and Annual 
Governance Statement 2020/21 

 

Portfolio:   Finance and Resources Portfolio Holder 

Report from:  Section 151 Officer 

Report Author: Helen Smith – Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) 

   Claire Read – Finance Specialist (Deputy Section 151 Officer) 

Wards:  (All Wards); 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

Links to Council Plan Priorities: The Statement of Accounts is one of the key corporate 
documents produced by the Council to demonstrate its financial position and performance. 
This underpins all Council priorities. 
 

1.0 Expected Outcome and Measures of Success 

1.1 It is expected that a Statement of Accounts, subject to final audit opinion, will be 
approved by the 30th September 2021. In accordance with statutory requirements, 
publication will be as soon as reasonably practical after receiving the audit opinion.  

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that on receiving the updated information Audit Committee: 

  

(1) approve the Statement of Accounts; 

(2) approve the letter of representation; 

(3) authorise the Chair of the Audit Committee to sign the letter of 
representation and the Statement of Accounts on behalf of the committee; 

(4) authorise the Chairman to re-sign the Statement of Accounts in the event of 
further amendments following the final audit findings report; 

(5) note the Annual Governance Statement action plan; and 

(6) note the External Audit action plan. 

 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 The Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations 2021 amended the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations 2015, changing the dates that authorities are required to prepare 
and publish its approved draft and audited accounts from 31st May and 31st July 
respectively, to 31st July and 30th September respectively for both the 2020/21 and 

Page 67

Item No.7



2021/22 accounts. As reported to Audit Committee in July 20212, the Council’s 
accounts were submitted to the External Auditor on 18 June 2021 in accordance with 
internal timelines, and significantly ahead of the revised statutory deadline.  

3.2 The unaudited Statement of Accounts for 2020/21 were approved by the Finance 
Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) on 18 June 2021. The accounts were subject to 
public inspection (from 21 June 2021) where the general public could raise 
objections, questions and comments with the External Auditor. The revised Accounts 
and Audit Regulations 2015 require that the 2020/21 accounts should be considered 
and approved by members and published no later than the 30 September 2021, or as 
soon as reasonably practicable after the receipt of the auditor’s final report (if later 
than 30 September). 

3.3 The audit process is currently being finalised and a number of amendments have 
been identified.  This includes some items where changes are required because of 
changed circumstances – including the Government amending the calculation of a 
grant and a change in valuations by the Cumbria Pension Fund.  These amendments 
are detailed in Appendix 1 to this report.  The significant changes are: 

a) Amended treatment of capital receipts: under correct accounting treatment 
income due but not received by 31 March each year should be treated as a 
deferred capital receipt but has been treated as a capital receipt.  The deferred 
capital receipt is then reversed when the capital receipt is received. This incorrect 
treatment has been applied since the Large Scale Voluntary Transfer of the 
housing stock and will require a prior period adjustment and a third balance sheet 
to be inserted to show the balances at 1 April 2019 for 2019/20 as well as the 
usual 31 March 2020 balances.  This amendment will have little impact as the 
capital receipts due from South Lakes Housing are all payable by the end of April 
following the year-end so this change will not have a significant impact on the 
ability to spend the receipts. 

b) Tax Income Guarantee grant due: the Government made an error in the 
calculator issued to calculate income due from this new grant for business rates 
(grant is also due relating to council tax: this calculation was correct).  An 
additional £122,157 will be payable in 2021/22 relating to 2020/21 and will be 
recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure account and transfer 
to the Tax Income Guarantee reserve.  This grant is to offset reductions in 
income in 2021/22 due to Covid-19-related adjustments to business rates in 
2020/21. 

c) NNDR from Pool: accounting for business rates requires billing authorities to 
calculate the income due compared to their business rate baseline and to pay a 
levy of 50% of any surplus to the Government unless part of a business rate pool 
where the levy is paid to the pool and then shared between members of the pool.  
The baseline for 2019/20 (£2,213,086) was used for the estimate of the 2020/21 
pool contributions instead of the baseline for 2020/21 (£2,249,145), which has 
resulted in recognising too much income from the pool.  This has now been 
reconciled with figures from the NNDR pool accounts, which were not available in 
June 2021 when this Council’s accounts were prepared.  Income from the pool 
will reduce from £896,903 to £593,255.  This will reduce the balance on the 
NNDR Pool Income Reserve from £3.124m to £2,820 and the NNDR Pool 
Volatility Reserve from £0.4m to £0.36. 

3.4 The revised statement of accounts, including any further amendments agreed 
between officers and external audit, are being prepared and it is expected that they 
will be ready for distribution by 21 September 2021. It is expected that the Audit 
Findings Report will be ready at the same time and both will be circulated prior to the 
meeting. 

Page 68



3.5  A small number of non-trivial disclosure changes are required and these will be 
included within the revised statements which will be distributed prior to this meeting 
of Audit Committee. These amendments will be detailed in the Audit Findings Report.  

3.6 The Audit Findings Report will cover only the review of the Statement of Accounts 
and associated documents.  The Value for Money review is being carried out 
separately and will be reported to a later meeting of Audit Committee. 

3.7  As part of the audit of the accounts the Council are required to issue a letter of 
Representation to the External Auditor. A copy of the letter will be distributed when 
available and form Appendix 2. This forms part of the overall assurance required by 
the external auditor in providing their opinion. This needs to be approved and signed 
by the Section 151 Officer and the Chairman of the Audit Committee. 
 

3.8  Published alongside the Statement of Accounts is the Annual Governance Statement 
(AGS), this has been updated for actions that have now been taken.  The AGS will be 
re-signed by the Chief Executive and the Leader of the Council. A copy of the AGS 
action plan is attached as Appendix 3. Implementation of the actions will be 
monitored through the Audit Committee throughout 2021/22.  

 
3.9 Included in External Audit’s finding’s report will be recommendations that have been 

agreed with management and progress will be reported on during the course of the 
2021/22 audit. A copy of these recommendations and managements response will be 
distributed when available and will form Appendix 4. 

4.0 Appendices Attached to this Report 

 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Summary of amendments to the 2020/21 Statement of Accounts  

2 Draft Letter of representation 2020/21 (to follow) 

3 Annual Governance Statement Action Plan 

4 Audit Action Plan (to follow) 

5 Audited Statement of Accounts and AGS 2020/21 (to follow) 

5.0 Consultation 

5.1 The unaudited statements were published on the Council’s website on 21 June 2021 
and were open to scrutiny and comment by members of the public from 21 June 
2021 in line with the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations 2015.  The unaudited statements were reported to Audit 
Committee on 29 July 2021. 

 

6.0 Alternative Options 

6.1 The report does not present any alternative options; there is a statutory deadline of 
30 September 2021 for publication of the 2020/21 Statement of Accounts or as soon 
as reasonably practical after the receipt of the Audit Opinion. 

6.2 It is a requirement to follow proper accounting practice when preparing the Statement 
of Accounts.  There are alternative interpretations of proper accounting practice in 
some circumstances.  Officers have considered potential alternative treatments with 
external auditors and applied the treatment that is most appropriate based on 
professional judgement.  Areas where significant judgements are made are reported 
within the accounts. 

Page 69



7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 There are no additional financial implications other than those contained in the report 

Human Resources 

7.2 There are no direct human resource implications of this report 

Legal 

7.3  There are no direct legal implications of this report. The revised Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015 require that the 2020/21 accounts should be considered and approved by 
members and published no later than the 30 September 2021, or as soon as reasonably 
practicable after the receipt of the auditor’s final report (if later than 30 September). 

The Monitoring Officer has been involved and has contributed to both the Annual Governance 
Statement and Action plan. 
 

Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment 

7.4 Have you completed a Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment? No  

7.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: The 
Statement of Accounts and AGS are historic documents relating to activities that 
have occurred during 2020/21 

7.6 Summary of Health and Sustainability Impacts 

 Positive Neutral Negative Unknown 

Environment 
and Health 

Greenhouse gases 
emissions 

   X 

 Air Quality    X 

 Biodiversity    X 

 Impacts of Climate 
Change 

   X 

 Reduced or zero 
requirement for energy, 
building space, materials 
or travel 

   X 

 Active Travel    X 

Economy and 
Culture 

Inclusive and sustainable 
development 

   X 

 Jobs and levels of pay    X 

 Healthier high streets    X 

 Culture, creativity and 
heritage 

   X 

Housing and 
Communities 

Standard of housing    X 

 Access to housing    X 

 Crime    X 

Page 70



 Social connectedness    X 

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No    

7.8 If you have not completed an Impact Analysis, please explain your reasons: The 
Statement of Accounts and AGS are historic documents relating to activities that 
have occurred during 2020/21. 

7.9 Summary of Equality and Diversity impacts 

Please indicate: P = Positive impact; 0 = Neutral; N = Negative; Enter “X” 

Age P  0  N  

Disability P  0  N  

Gender reassignment (transgender) P  0  N  

Marriage & civil partnership P  0  N  

Pregnancy & maternity P  0  N  

Race/ethnicity P  0  N  

Religion or belief P  0  N  

Sex/gender P  0  N  

Sexual orientation P  0  N  

Armed forces families P  0  N  

Rurality P  0  N  

Socio-economic disadvantage P  0  N  

 

Risk Management Consequence Controls required 

The risk is that the accounts are 
not authorised, audited and 
published by the statutory 
deadline. 

The Council’s reputation 
for good financial 
governance may be 
diminished. 

External audit of accounts 
within statutory deadlines 
to provide Audit 
Committee with assurance 
that the accounts 
represent a true and fair 
view. 

Contact Officers 

Claire Read, Finance Specialist, 01539 793152, Claire.Read@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Helen Smith, Finance Lead Specialist, 01539 793147, h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Statement of Accounts and Annual 

Governance Statement 2020/21 

reported to Audit Committee 29 July 

2021 

https://tinyurl.com/5vmy8bj4 

 

Page 71

mailto:Claire.Read@southlakeland.gov.uk
mailto:h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk
https://tinyurl.com/5vmy8bj4


Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent Date Signed off 

Section 151 Officer Report of S151 Officer Report of S151 Officer 

Monitoring Officer 09.09.2021 15.09.2021 

CMT n/a - 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist N/A 

Human Resources Lead Specialist N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee 23/09/2021 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Page 72



Amendments made to the 2020/21 Statement of Accounts Appendix 1

Ref Account Balance Year / 
Date

Original 
Value

Amended 
Value

Value Explanation of Change

£000 £000 £000
1 Pensions

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement: Other 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure:Remeasurement of Net 
Defined Benefit Pension Liability

31/03/21 2,126 1,220 906

Balance Sheet: Other Long Term Liabilities (Net Pension Liability) 31/03/21 (40,149) (39,243) (906)

Balance Sheet: Unusable Reserves 31/03/21 40,149 39,243 906
 also Note 33 Unusable Reserves
 also Note 35 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

2 Capital Receipts
Balance Sheet: Usable Reserves 31/03/21 (43,509) (43,071) (438)
Balance Sheet: Unusable Reserves 31/03/21 (3,837) (4,275) 438
  also Cash Flow Statement: 
  also Note 8: Transfers to/from Usable Reserves
  Usable Capital Receipts
  also Note 33 Unusable Reserves
  F: Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve

3 Tax Income Guarantee Scheme
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement: Taxation and 
Non-Specific Grant Income: Other Government Grant

2020/21 (2,334) (2,456) 122

Note 8: Transfers to/from Usable Reserves: Tax Income Guarantee 
Scheme: Transfers in

2020/21 (130) (252) 122

  also Note 17: Grant Income

The Government announced a new grant for 2020/21 called Tax 
Income Guarantee (TIG) to partially offset the impact of Covid-19 
on income receivable from council tax and business rates.  The 
spreadsheet supplied to calculate the business rate TIG was 
incorrect and a revised version was published after the accounts 
were approved for issue in June 2021.

Following the publication of the Council's Draft accounts, further 
information of the market as at 31/03/2021, prompted an increase 
in the valuation of proviate equity investments. The result was an 
increase in the value of fund assets reducing the net penion 
liability and associated reserve.

Capital Income due but not received by 31 March each year 
should be treated as a deferred capital receipt but has been 
treated as a capital receipt.  The deferred capital receipt is then 
reversed when the capital receipt is received. This Impacts the 
RTB and Vat Shelter receipts from South Lakes Housing as the 
income is not due until 30th April following the year end.

P
age 73



Ref Account Balance Year / 
Date

Original 
Value

Amended 
Value

Value Explanation of Change

£000 £000 £000
4 NNDR Levy and Pool

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement: Taxation and 
Non-Specific Grant Income: Non-domestic rates levy

2020/21 1,742 1,000 742

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement: Taxation and 
Non-Specific Grant Income: Income from Cumbria NNDR Pool

2020/21 (792) (413) (379)

Note 8: Transfers to/from Usable Reserves: Cumbria NDR Pool 
Income Reserve: Transfers in

2020/21 (897) (593) (304)

Note 8: Transfers to/from Usable Reserves: Cumbria NDR Pool 
Volatility Reserve: Transfers in

2020/21 (223) (147) (76)

5 Investment Properties
Note 11: Expenditure and Income analysed by Nature
  Delivery and Commercial Services
    Income from fees and charges 2020/21 (4,131) (4,369) 238
    Grants and contributions 2020/21 (3,455) (3,217) (238)

6 Note 16: External Audit Costs Updated to include 2020/21 Housing Benefit Audit cost as agree 
with Grant Thornton since draft accounts were published

7 Note 34: Related Parties Amendment of note to clarify that SLDC Members appointed to 
the board of South Lakes Housing were remunerated; to include 
transactions with Kendal Futures that were material to Kendal 
Futures but not to SLDC.

8 Note 7: Events after the balance sheet date To add announcement of Local Government Reorganisation, 
change in TIG calculation and changes to pensions valuation.

9 Note 1: Covid-19 To expand the Covid-19 disclosures including where the amounts 
are shown in the accounts; added statement that sums received 
and not paid will either be paid in 2021/22 or repaid to 
Government and to expand the description of the Sales, Fees 
and Charges grant.

disclosures only

Income and expenditure relating to investment properties is 
deducted form service income and expenditure.  The Sales, Fees 
and Charges grant relating to Braithwaite Fold Caravan Site was 
deducted from "Income from fees and charges" in error rather 
than "Grants and contributions"

disclosures only

disclosures only

disclosures only

Accounting for business rates requires billing authorities to 
calculate the income due compared to their business rate 
baseline and to pay a levy of 50% of any surplus to the 
Government unless part of a business rate pool where the levy is 
paid to the pool and then shared between members of the pool.  
The baseline for 2019/20 (£2,213,086) was used for the estimate 
of the 2020/21 pool contributions instead of the baseline for 
2020/21 (£2,249,145), which has resulted in recognising too 
much income from the pool.  This has now been reconciled with 
figures from the NNDR pool accounts, which were not available in 
June 2021 when this Council’s accounts were prepared.  

P
age 74



        Appendix 3 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT 
 
 

1 
 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT ACTIONS  

Local 
Code 
ref 

Local Code Measures Current 
Score  
4 high 
0 low 

Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

 
Existing Actions (references updated to revised Local Code) 

A6 Use the Council’s shared values to act as a 
guide for decision making and as a basis for 
developing positive and trusting relationships 
within the Council; 

 Monitoirng 
Officer 

31/03/2021 Part 
Complete 
and further 
reports will 
be 
produced in 
2021/2022  

The Review of Local Government Ethical Standards 
was reported to the Standards Committee in April 
2019. The Best practice recommendations have been 
considered and reported back to the Standards 
Committee in April 2021. This was at the same time 
that the Revised Member Code of Conduct was 
considered. We await further guidance and Legislation 
from the Government relating to some of the Best 
Practice recommendations.  Council agreed the new 
code of conduct for councillors in June 2021 and 
training is being delivered to all members on the 14th 
September 2021. 

B9, 
B10 

Overall, several Local Code provisions to 
ensure that the authority as a whole is open 
and accessible to the community, service 
users and its staff and ensure that it has a 
commitment to openness and transparency in 
all its dealings including partnerships subject 
only to the need to preserve confidentiality in 
those specific circumstances where it is proper 
and appropriate.  
 

 Operational 
Lead Support 
Services; 
Performance, 
Innovation and 
Commissioning 
Specialist 

CC 
commenced 
due to 
continue 
over next 12 
months. 

In progress Information governance, data quality and transparency 
will all feature as part of the Customer Connect 
Programme, particularly the implementation of the new 
digital platform. In addition, the new platform will also 
enhance communication with customers, ensure that it 
is easier to access services and gather feedback. 
Update: MyAccount launched May 2021: this formed 
an essential element of managing Covid-19 grant 
schemes. 
Implementation of development management system 
continuing. 
Full staff transition to new systems and processes 
delayed by Covid-19 and diverson of resources. 

D14 Link service plans to agreed measures and 
targets within the Council plan (incuding Social 
Value)  

 Strategy Lead 
Specialist; 
Performance, 

31/10/2021 In progress Embedding of procurement practices into service 
planning (eg identifying contracts in plans) along with 

P
age 75



        Appendix 3 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT 
 
 

2 
 

Local 
Code 
ref 

Local Code Measures Current 
Score  
4 high 
0 low 

Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

 
Set out clear financial and contract procedure 
rules, kept under review as part of the overall 
Constitution of the Council. 
 

Innovation and 
Commissioning 
Specialist; 
Finance Lead 
Specialist 

wider consideration of social value around delivery 
options. 
Update: A Commissioning Framework and revised 
Procurement Strategy are being prepared which will 
incorporate social value alongside other relevant 
policies such as climate change and biodiversity.  

E3 Ensuring appropriate financial skills of Officers 
scored 3 out of 4 with some scope to make 
financial acumen requirements more explicit. 

 Finance Lead 
Specialist / 
Human 
Resources Lead 
Specialist 
 

CC 
commenced 
due to 
continue 
over next  12 
months 

In progress This is a medium term strategic project which also links 
in to Customer Connect. 

 
New Actions 

Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law 

- Ensuring members and officers behave with 
integrity and lead a culture where acting in the 
public interest is visibly and consistently 
demonstrated thereby protecting the reputation 
of the organisation: individual sign-off with 
regard to compliance with code 

 All Managers 31/3/2022 In progress New annual appraisal process - 'Your Conversation' - 
being launched in 2021. This is supported by monthly 
121 meetings between line managers and team 
members. Values are confirmed, and Behaviours 
workshops are planned for 2021 which will most 
probably lead to an update on the Personal Qualities 
Framework 

A10 
 
 

Put in place arrangements to ensure that 
procedures and operations are designed in 
conformity with appropriate ethical standards, 
and to monitor their continuing compliance in 
practice; 
 
 

3 Monitoring 
Officer 

31/3/2022 In progress  Engagement with all Services on the Constitution and 
any required changes. Establishment of Constitutional 
Working Group with Party Leaders ( first meeting took 
place 07/06/2021).Training Programme 2021/22 on 
Legal, Governance and Democracy for all staff. 2 
sessions already delivered.  

3 Monitoring 
Officer 

31/03/2022 Ongoing  MO underpins personal behaviour with ethical values 
in relation to Code of Conduct Complaints against 
Members, established Standards Committee, following 

P
age 76



        Appendix 3 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT 
 
 

3 
 

Local 
Code 
ref 

Local Code Measures Current 
Score  
4 high 
0 low 

Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

procedure and assessing complaints with Independent 
Person.  
Also advising fairly in relation to declarations of interest 
for both members and officers. 
Annual Review completed  
Meetings arranged with the Independent Person as 
required.  
Appointment and meetings with Independent Person 

3 Human 
Resources Lead 
Specialist 

  Planned programme of HR policy reviews currently 
underway - around 1/3rd completed: more policy 
updates to HR Committee in July 2021 

A12 Put in place arrangements so that conflicts of 
interest on behalf of members and employees 
can be avoided and put in place appropriate 
processes to ensure that they continue to 
operate in practice  

 Monitoring 
Officer 

31/03/2022 Ongoing  Regular training is provided on declaration of interest 
requirements for new members with refresher training 
for all members. 
 
Declaration advice provided at all meetings with 
dispensations in place as required and requested.  
 
Work this year to improve the related party disclosures 
linked to transparency of member support gratns and 
other interests. 
 
Work required relating to raising the profile and 
awareness regarding officer decarations of interest, 
relaunch planned. Plus raising awareness regarding 
processs. Form updated this year.  
 
 

P
age 77



        Appendix 3 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT 
 
 

4 
 

Local 
Code 
ref 

Local Code Measures Current 
Score  
4 high 
0 low 

Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

A14 Actively recognise the limits of lawful activity 
placed on the Council by the ultra vires 
doctrine but also strive to utilise the Council’s 
powers to the full benefit of our communities; 

3 Monitoring 
Officer / All 
Managers 

31/03/2021 Ongoing  Monitoring Officer reports quarterly to the Corporate 
Management Team on significant legal issues and 
cases of significance. With all case work we advise on  
vires (intra and ultra) doctrine and the MO ensures the 
Council acts within the vires doctrine. 
Quarterly reports continue, daily  advice and input on 
case work and legal advice provided on reports to 
meetings and decision making. 

A15 Observe all specific legislative requirements 
placed upon the Council as well as the 
requirements of general law, and in particular 
integrate the key principles of administrative 
law – rationality, legality and natural justice into 
the Council’s procedures and decision making; 

3 All Managers  31/03/2021 Ongoing  Legal officers advise officers on points of law and 
through continued development and training. The MO 
and Legal Officers not only apply these principles 
within their department but across the Council and 
when advising Members 

A16 Put in place effective systems to protect the 
rights of staff. Ensure that policies for whistle 
blowing which are accessible to staff and those 
contracting with the authority, and 
arrangements for the support of whistle 
blowers, are in place 

3 Human 
Resources 
Manager / 
Section 151 
Officer 

31/3/2022  Whistleblowing policy last reviewed 2017/18: review 
was due in 2019/20 but has been delayed due to 
pressures of Customer Connect and Covid-19 

A18 use a statement of business conduct  to make 
its expectations clear to partners and external 
providers of services; 

2 Section 151 
Officer/Strategy 
Lead Specialist 

31/3/2022  Although there is a Partnership Register, there 
appears to be no current policy to accompany 
To do: Development of External Arrangement 
Policy/Strategy/ Guidance 

A19 Induction for new members and staff on 
standard of behaviour expected 

3 HR Lead 
Specialist 

31/3/2022 In progress Aim: provide induction programmes tailored to 
individual needs and opportunities for members and 
officers to update their knowledge on a regular basis. 
Induction process in place, with development 
opportunities boosted by recent provision of e-learning. 

P
age 78



        Appendix 3 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT 
 
 

5 
 

Local 
Code 
ref 

Local Code Measures Current 
Score  
4 high 
0 low 

Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

Also, new Member Development Strategy currently 
going through approval process. 

A20 Assess the skills required by members and 
officers and make arrangements to agree a 
development plan to develop those skills and 
address any training gaps, to enable roles to 
be carried out effectively; 

3 All managers 31/10/2021  'new appraisal' approach, skills gap conversations, and 
Customer Connect Transition programme are 
underway 

A22 ensure that professional advice on legal and 
financial matters is available and recorded well 
in advance of decision making and used 
appropriately when decisions have significant 
legal or financial implications. 

2 Monitoring 
Officer 

31/03/2022 Ongoing  Report includes sections for professional advice on 
legal, financial, HR and other areas.  Reports 
circulated to relevant officers, dates of advice recorded 
in report, all reports (except planning committee) 
considered and approved by Corporate Management 
Team before cleared for publication. However, current 
legal case management system needs addressing. 
Urgent need for adequate legal case management 
system. 
Meetings of Statutory Officers  in place  

Principle B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 

B1 Develop protocols to ensure effective 

communication between members and officers 

in their respective roles; 

3 Strategy Lead 
Specialist 

31/03/2022  Protocol exists, but no indication of when last reviewed 

B3 Ensure that the Council’s vision, values, 
strategic plans, priorities and targets are 
developed through robust mechanisms, and in 
consultation with the local community and 
other key stakeholders, and that they are 
clearly articulated and disseminated; 

3 Strategy Lead 
Specialist 

31/3/2022  Unsure when this was last reviewed: review by March 
2022 

P
age 79



        Appendix 3 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT 
 
 

6 
 

Local 
Code 
ref 

Local Code Measures Current 
Score  
4 high 
0 low 

Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

B4 In pursuing partnerships, agree a set of values 
against which decision making and actions can 
be judged in line with and having referred to 
the Partnership Register and Guidance. 

2 Strategy Lead 
Specialist 

31/3/2022  A Partnership Register exists but responsibility shifts 
means that it needs a review. Also policy behid it need 
reinstating 

B5 Develop and maintain open and effective 
mechanisms for documenting evidence for 
decisions and recording the criteria, rationale 
and considerations on which decisions are 
based; 

3 All Managers   Building of relationships with portfolio holders. 
Examples SAMP board, Climate Change Action 
Group.  Actions may be dependent on the area of work 

B13 To ensure committee decisions are fully 
documented through the use of appropriate 
report templates, agenda submission 
processes and minutes; 

2 All Managers 31/10/2021  Further training and further communication of what is 
required. Council wide engagement needed. 

B16 Ensure that professional advice on legal and 

financial matters is available and recorded well 

in advance of decision making and used 

appropriately when decisions have significant 

legal or financial implications; 

3 Monitoring 
Officer 

31/03/2022 Ongoing Specific facility within all reports to Council members 
that log the advice sought from legal and finance. 
More training required and further communication of 
how and when advice from legal and finance advice 
should be sought. 
 

B17 When working in partnership, ensure that there 

is a clear statement setting out the purpose of 

the partnership and the outputs to be 

achieved. 

3 All managers 31/03/2022  Some work to ensure that this is included in the policy 
for partnership working 

Principle C: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits 

C7 Link service plans to agreed measures and 

targets within the Council plan; 

3 All managers 31/10/2021  Out of date and being replaced by "Plan on a Page" 

C11 Ensure that risk management is embedded 

into the culture of the authority, with members 

and managers at all levels recognising that risk 

management is part of their job; 

3 All managers 31/10/2021  Although Protocols are in place, they are not always 
applied 

P
age 80



        Appendix 3 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT 
 
 

7 
 

Local 
Code 
ref 

Local Code Measures Current 
Score  
4 high 
0 low 

Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

Principle D: Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes  

D1 Decide how the quality of service for users is 

to be measured and ensure that the 

information needed to review service quality 

effectively and regularly is available; 

3 All managers 31/10/2021  Service Plans being replaced by "Plan to Page" 

D13 Partnership Framework:  

Ensure that risk management is embedded 

into the culture of the authority, with members 

and managers at all levels recognising that risk 

management is part of their job 

3 All managers 31/10/2021  Specific evidence pertaining to Partnerships difficult to 
find 

Principle E: Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it  

E2 assess the skills required by members and 

officers and make arrangements to agree a 

development plan to develop those skills and 

address any training gaps, to enable roles to 

be carried out effectively; 

3 Human 
Resources Lead 
Specialist 

30/11/2022  Leadership Team development programme with 
external provider will conmclude in summer 2021. 
Team Leader programme will start in autumn 2021. 
Behavioural workshops will help employees define 
behaviours that help us meet this need. New Member 
Development Strategy will support 
Employee workshops in 2021, plus training 
opportunities to support member development 

E5 Develop skills on a continuing basis to improve 

performance, including the ability to scrutinise 

and challenge and to recognise when outside 

expert advice is needed, in line with the 

member development strategy; 

3 Human 
Resoruces Lead 
Specialist 

31/12/2021  Induction process in place, with development 
opportunities boosted by recent provision of e-learning. 
Also, new Member Development Strategy currently 
going through approval process   
Your Conversation launch May 2021. Values and 
Behaviours workshops planned for later in 2021. 
Plan to review induction/onboarding in 2021 

P
age 81



        Appendix 3 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT 
 
 

8 
 

Local 
Code 
ref 

Local Code Measures Current 
Score  
4 high 
0 low 

Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

E8 Consider career structures for members and 

officers to encourage participation and 

development 

2 Chief Executive / 
All managers 

31/03/2022   

E9 manage the strategic Human Resource 

Management and Organisational Development 

needs of the organisation through relevant 

policies and accreditation. 

3 Human 
Resources Lead 
Specialist 

31/10/2021  Plan on a Page dvelopment ongoing 

E14 develop protocols to ensure effective 

communication between members and officers 

in their respective roles; 

3 Chief Executive 30/06/2022  Discussion between Chief Executive and Leader 

E15 develop protocols to ensure that the leader 

and chief executive negotiate their respective 

roles early in their relationship and that a 

shared understanding of roles and objectives 

is maintained; 

3 Monitoring 
Officer 

31/03/2022 Ongoing  Keeping this under review, Cabinet away days with 
Leadership Team and clarification of Council Priorities 
and roles and responsibilites relating to them. 

E16 determine a scheme of delegated and 

reserved powers within the constitution and 

ensure that it is monitored and updated when 

required 

3 Monitoring 
Officer 

31/03/2022 Ongoing  Work is ongoing with all services to ensure that the 
Constitution is clear regarding delegations and 
decision making. The Constitution is now treated as a 
living document which is reviewed regularly and 
updated. Previously this has been on an annual basis. 
Approx 6 reports over the past year have amended the 
Constitution and the Council has introduced 
emergency decision making to deal with COVID-19. 
The MO will be bringing forward a programme of work 
for the year to come. 

P
age 82



        Appendix 3 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT 
 
 

9 
 

Local 
Code 
ref 

Local Code Measures Current 
Score  
4 high 
0 low 

Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

E17 Ensure effective internal control arrangements 

exist for sound financial management systems 

and processes; 

3 Seection 151 
Officer 

30/06/2022  Second update report to be presented to the 
Leadership Team on the amends to contracts and 
Contract Procedure Rules by June 2021. Further 
update on the programme of work to update individual 
service delegations and decision making will be 
programmed in over the next 12 months. All to proceed 
through the Constitutional Working Group. 

E18 Establish clear channels of communication 

with all sections of the community and other 

stakeholders and put in place monitoring 

arrangements to ensure that they operate 

effectively; 

2 Strategy Lead 
Specialist 

31/03/2022  More work required on the Strategy behind Partnership 
working 

Principle F: Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management 

F17 ensure performance, financial and non-

financial, is reported to senior management 

and Members including action plans where 

necessary; 

2 All managers 31/10/2021  Performance map showing all key activities have 
performance measures: consider as part of Plan on a 
Page process 

F18 To ensure committee decisions are fully 

documented through the use of appropriate 

report templates, agenda submission 

processes and minutes; 

3 All managers 31/10/2021  Calendar of dates for submitting, publishing and 
distributing timely reports that are adhered to 
Deadlins frequently missed or insufficient time allowed 
for preparation of comments. Training to be provided to 
ensure timely receipt of requests for support and 
advice. 

F20 develop and maintain an effective scrutiny 

function which encourages constructive 

challenge and enhances the authority’s 

performance overall; 

3 Monitoring 
Officer 

31/03/2021 Ongoing  Training to be provided at least annually for members 
Access to North West Employers in place training and 
support 
Evidence of effective scrutiny in the Annual Report 
2020/2021  

Principle G: Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability 

P
age 83



        Appendix 3 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT 
 
 

10 
 

Local 
Code 
ref 

Local Code Measures Current 
Score  
4 high 
0 low 

Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

G9 ensure that the authority as a whole is open 

and accessible to the community, service 

users and staff and make a commitment to 

openness and transparency in all our dealings, 

including partnerships subject only to the need 

to preserve confidentiality in those specific 

circumstances where it is proper and 

appropriate to do so; 

2 Chief Executive 31/3/2022  Not explicitly a community strategy but sets out 
arrangements for accountability in partnerships. 
Review by March 2022. 

 

CIPFA FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT CODE ACTIONS  

Fm 
Code 
Ref 

FM Code measure Current 
Status 
Yes /No 

Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

A: The leadership team is able to demonstrate that the services provided by the authority provide value for money 

A2 High-level governance and management 
arrangements exist: Effective service and 
financial planning 

N All managers 30/09/2021  Plan on a Page development ongoing 

A4 Reviewing explicitly the ways in which these 
services are delivered or by comparing the 
authority’s own services and service 
performance with those of other authorities: 

 Efficiency reviews 

 Benchmarking 

 Peer Review 

N Section 151 
Officer 

31/03/2022  Linked to Plan on a Page development: need to ensure 
full coverage of reviews and benchmarking. 
 
 

P
age 84



        Appendix 3 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT 
 
 

11 
 

Fm 
Code 
Ref 

FM Code measure Current 
Status 
Yes /No 

Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

A5 Ways in which the authority could help to 
ensure that its services are effective, in that 
they are achieving the authority’s objectives 
and meeting the needs of service users: 

 Monitoring of Performance Data 

 Service Reviews 

 User Surveys 

 External assessments 

N All managers 
 
 
Section 151 
Officer 

31/03/2022 
 
 
31/07/2022 

 Plan on a Page development ongoing: link to 
monitoring required 
 
Value for money policy to be prepared alongside 
Procurement Strategy update and Medium Term 
Financial Plan refresh. 

L: The authority has engaged with key stakeholders in developing its long term financial strategy, medium term financial plan and annual budget. 

L The authority has engaged with key 
stakeholders in developing its long term 
financial strategy, medium term financial plan 
and annual budget. 

N Section 151 
Officer 

28/02/2022  Overview and Scrutiny Committee invited to comment 
on draft MTFP and budget proposals.  Statutory 
business rate consultation carried out as part of budget 
setting process. 
Public consultation methodology to be developed for 
2021/22 budget setting process 

M: The authority uses a documented option appraisal methodology to demonstrate the VFM of its decisions 

M1 Option appraisal IFAC/PAIB Project and 
Investment Appraisal for Sustainable Value 
Creation: Principles in Project and Investment 
Appraisal  

N Section 151 
Officer 

31/12/2021  A high-level bid is required for all capital schemes, a 
full business case is requested prior to commencement 
of capital works but the format is not mandated.   
A business case format will be prepared to include the 
rationale for the project, capital and revenue costs, 
payback period (if applicable) and project risks. 
Procurement Strategy to be approved in    
All tenders consider VFM by considering the quality of 
service, not just the price. 

M3 The accounting treatment of material decisions 
is considered and demonstrated as part of the 
formal option appraisal process. 

N 

N: The leadership team takes action using reports enabling it to identify and correct emerging risks to its budget strategy and financial sustainability 

N2 All Financial monitoring reports include: 
•Accruals based financial information 
•Service performance information 

N Chief Finance 
Officer 

  Purchase ordering system produces accruals based 
purchase information,  payroll and income is on cash 
basis.   

P
age 85



        Appendix 3 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT 
 
 

12 
 

Fm 
Code 
Ref 

FM Code measure Current 
Status 
Yes /No 

Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

N6 There are appropriate arrangements in place 
for reporting and managing the financial 
performance of each of the organisation’s 
delivery partnerships and collaborative 
arrangements. 

N All managers 31/3/2022  Some monitoring through contract processes, not fully 
consolidated into main finance monitoring processes 

N7 There are appropriate arrangements in place 
for the project management and cost control of 
capital projects. 

N All managers 31/3/2022  While there is budget monitoring there has been a very 
significant level of re-profiling of capital programme 
which suggests further work is necessary 

O: The leadership team monitors the elements of its balance sheet which pose a significant risk to its financial stability 

O2 Management accounts include either a full 
balance sheet or an appropriate level of 
balance sheet information to meet business 
needs and evidence of monitoring of material 
items 

N Section 151 
Officer 

31/03/2022  Internal monitoring only includes certain balance sheet 
items, mainly around debt.  Full review of balance 
sheet monitoring to be completed by March 2022 

 

P
age 86


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Audit Committee 2021/22 Work Programme (September 2021)
	6 Internal Audit Progress Report 2021/22 (September 2021)
	Internal Audit Progress Report September 2021 - Appendix 1
	Internal Audit Progress Report September 2021 - Appendices 2a-2c
	Internal Audit Progress Report September 2021 - Appendix 3

	7 Audited Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement 2020/21
	Audited Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement 2020/21  - Appendix 1
	Audited Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement 2020/21  - Appendix 3


